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NOTE

The Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been amended. This
amendment corrects note 32¢ on page 84 setting out the BBC Studios Limited Group subsidiaries that are
exempt from audit under s.479A of the Companies Act 2006.

The revised accounts, which includes this note together with the appended independent auditor’s repart and
the revision to note 32c on page 84, replace the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019 originally
approved by the directors on 18 June 2019 and are now the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019. The revised accounts have been prepared as at the date of the original accounts,
and not as at the date of the revision and accordingly do not deal with events between those dates.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BBC STUDIOS LIMITED

Opinion on Financial Statements

| have audited the revised financial statements of BBC Studios Limited for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the group and parent balance sheet, {he consolidated statement of
changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes, including the
significant accounting policies. The revised financial statements replace the original financial
statements approved by the Directors on 18 June 2019 and consist of the attached supplementary
note together with the original financial statements which were circulated to shareholders on 18
June 2019.

The revised financial statements have been prepared under the Companies (Revision of
Defective Accounts and Report) Regulations 2008 (as amended) and accordingly do not take
account of events which have taken place after the date on which the original financial statements
were approved.

In my opinion:

« the revised financial statements give & true and fair view, seen as at the date the original
financial statements were approved, of the state of the group and parent company's
affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of the group's profit for the year then ended; and

« the revised group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union; and

« the revised parent financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting
Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and

* the revised financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006 as they have effect under the Companies {Revision
of Defective Accounts and Report) Regulations 2008 {(as amended); and

= the original financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 failed to comply with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 in the respects identified by the Directors in
the statement contained in the supplementary note.

Basis of opinions

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of my report. Those standards require me and my
staff to comply with the Financial Reporting Council's Revised Ethical Standard 2016. | am
independent of BBC Studios Limited in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to my audit and the financial statements in the UK. My staff and | have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

The audit of revised financial statements includes the performance of additional procedures to
assess whether the revisions made by the Directors are appropriate and have been properly
made.




| planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which |
considered necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the revised financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. In forming my opinion | also evaluated the overall adequacy of
presentation of information in the revised financia! statements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

| am required to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the BBC Studios Limited's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date of
approval of the financial statements. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required
to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern. | have nothing to report in these
respects.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are
responsibie for:

= the preparation of the revised financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view.

= such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

= assessing the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, if applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

My responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the revised financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK) and are
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as they have effect
under the Companies (Revision of Defective Accounts and Report) Regulations 2008 (as
amended).

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonahle assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or errcr. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), | exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:



= identify and assess the risks of materiat misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group and BBC Studios Limited's
internal control.

= evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financiat information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion cn the consolidated
financial staterments. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

* Inthe case of revised financial statements, | am required to report whether, in my opinion,
the original financial statements failed to comply with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 in the respects identified by the Directors.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that | identify during my audit.

Other Information

Directors are responsible for the gther information. The other information comprises information
included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and my auditer's report thereon.
My opinion on the revised financial statements does not cover the ather information and | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. {n cennection with my audit of the revised
financiat statements, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing so, consider
whether the cther information is materially inconsistent with the revised financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In my opinion:

= in light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, | have not identified any material
misstatements in the Strategic Repart or the Directors’ Report; and

» theinformation given in the Strategic and Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the revised financial statements
and those reports have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.



Matters on which | report by exception

| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
me to report to you if, in my opinion;

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate
for my audit have not been received from branches not visited by my staff; or

» the revised financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns,; or

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» | have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit.

Empbhasis of matter — revision of the disclosure related to subsidiary companies claiming
exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act

In forming my opinion of the revised financial statements, which is not qualified, | have considered
the adequacy of the disclosures made in the supplementary note concerning the need to revise
the disclosure related to subsidiary companies claiming exemption from audit under section 479A
of the Companies Act.

The original financial statements were approved on 18 June 2019 and my previous report was
signed on that date. In accerdance with the requirements of the Companies (Revision of Defective
Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended), | have not performed a review of
subsequent events for the period from the date of my previous report to the date of this report.
My work on subsequent events is restricted solely to the amendment of the financial statements
as described in the supplementary note to the financial statements.

LEWIS KNIGHTS
Senior Statutory Auditor 12 December 2019

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller and Auditor General (Statutory Auditor)
National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road

Victoria

London

SW1w 9sp



BBC Studios Limited
Registered number 04463546
Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019



Officers and advisors

Directors
Tirm Davie
Tom Fussell

Company secretary
Anthony Corriette

Registered office

1 Television Centre
101 Wood Lane
London

W12 7FA

Auditor

National Audit Office

157 - 197 Buckingharm Palace Road
London

SW1wW 9sP

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019



Contents

4

15

18

19

22

23

24

23

26

27

46

88

89

92

Strategic report

Directors' repart

Statement of directors' responsibilities
Independent auditor's report to the members of BBC Studios Limited
Consolidated incame statement

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Consolidated balance sheet

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Consolidated cash flow statement

Statement of Group accounting policies

Nates to the Group financial statements
Company balance sheet

Statement of Company accounting policies

Notes to the Company financial statements

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019




Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements

Strategic report

The Directors present their annual report for BBC Studios Limited {the 'Company’), together with the conselidated
and Company financia. statements and auditor's report, for the year ended 31 March 2019, The consol dated
financia. statements comprise the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (the 'Group). The Group financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards as adopted by the EU
((IFRS’). The Company financial staternents have been prepared i~ accordance with FRS 101: Reduced Disclosure
Framework for all periods presented and these can be seen on pages 88 tg 92.

What is BBC Studios?

BBC 5tudios was created in April 2018 by the merger of two existing commercial British Broadcasting Corporation
{BBC') subsidiaries:; the BBC's production arm for factual, factual entertainment, events, entertainment, music and
scripted programmes, alse known as BBC Studios, and BBC Worldwide, which oversaw the globat distribution and
exploitation of BBC [P through content sales, channels, international production and ancillaries.

s goal is to inspire global audiences with world-class content that informs, educates anc entertains, strengthening
the BBC, its partners and the wider industry creatively and financially.

Thraugh its award-winning production arm, BBC Studios is the BBC's primary supplier of content, making around
2,000 hours of high quality programming every year in the UK. {ts titles include award-winning series like Blue Planet
I, Doctor Who , Strictly Come Dancing , This Country and Top Gear, as well as long running series like Watchdog,
EastiEnders, DIY SOS and Antigues Roadshow . Its programmes span drama, commedy, factual, factual entertainment,
entertainment, music and events representing all audiences round the UK.

Globally, through its distribution business, BBC Studios trades in over 200 territories. The business licenses content
to broadcast customers, runs BBC-branded channels, on-demand services and/or operates preduction bases catering
to local, national and international markets.

There are 34 BBC-branded wholly owned and operated channels, broadcast in multiple countries, ranging from BBC
Earth in Natural History and Factual through to CBeebies for younger audiences. 8BC Stucics also owns channels
with other broadcasting partners, like BBC AMERICA with AMC Networks, BBC Earth with Sony in India; and Carus
Entertainment for BBC Canada. In North America, with partner [TV plc, BBC Studios has created BritBox for fans of
British shows in the USA and Canada. BBC Player, BBC Studios’ multi-genre subscription videc-on-demand {SVQD)
service, is available in Singapore and Malaysia.

BBC Studios works with other content companies and broadcasters to create formats, to co-fund programmes like
the forthcoming Ore Planet , Seven Worlds for BBC One, made by BBC Studios Natural History Unit, and co-produced
with BBC AMERICA, Tencent Penguin Pictures, ZDF and France Télévisions. This additional international funding
enables UK audiences to enjoy premium programming in a way that is affordable to BBC Content, and significantly
broadens the reach of BBC pregrammes, with over a billion peaple watching a BBC Planet title in the last three years.
It also devises spin-off products like programme merchandise and branded live events like Countryfile Live.

In additicn to programmes made and marketed by BBC Studios itself, the Company also partners with other
Broadcasters and platforms to nurture ideas and get content funded, made and shown. BBC Studios invests in
independent preduction companies, both for rights and strategic equity, fostering British talent and ideas like the
recent drama Pure , made for E4 by independent productior company Drama Republic, and the critically-acclaimed
adaptation of the classic Victor Hugo novel Les Misérables - a BBC Studios Preductions co-preduction with fully
owned premium scripted production company Lookout Point.

BBC Studios Limited
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Annual Reparts and Consolidated Financial Statements
Strategic report continued

What is BBC Studios? continued

Last but not least, BBC Studios has a bold amhbition to create and foster a strong working culture, one that nurtures
Creativity, encourages collaboration and embraces diversity and innovation. it is committed to ongoing improvements
in training, development and overall structure to ensure that all BBC Studios staff have the support and space they
need to do their best work.

Business Highlights
1. Headline Sates
Breakdown by line of business (excluding Studioworks in priar year):

2019 2018
£m £m
Production and Cistribution 1,056.6 1,103.8
Branded Services 3356 326.0
Care Group eliminations (19.3) {18.5)
Total 1,372.9 1,4113
2. EBITDA
Breakdown by line of business (excluding STudiowarks in prior year):
2019 2018
£m £m
Production and Distribution 81.5 339
Branded Services 709 60.8
Core Group eliminations 7.0 10.3
Total 159.4 105.0
3. Free Cash Generation
£111.2 million {2018: £91.9 million) +21%
4, Returns to the BBC
£243.3 million (2018: £209.9 million) +16%
5. Five-year returns to the BBC
£1,112.4 million since 2014/15*
£m
2018/19 2433
2017/18 209.9
2016/17 2105
2015/16 222.2
2014/15 2265

* The first faur years relate to BBC Worldwide anly

6. Returns to Indies
£175.6 million (2018: £148.6 million}

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019 5




Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements

Strategic report continued

Overview
It has been a strong first year for the new BBC Studios. The merger of BBC Worldwide and BBC Studios was

completed, crealing a cohesive and agile company. It is now a global business of scale, able to fund, create, distribute
and commercialise premium content for both the BBC and other companies around the world. BBC Studios can take
an idea seamlessly from thought to screen, putting the husiness on a sound strategic footing in a dynamic market.
Alongside other continuing plans to transform the business, and significant deals with Discovery struck at year end,
agreeing the split of UKXTV's channel assets and a leng-term premium factual content partnership, this fundamenta.
change was underpirned by a goad financial performance.

Headline sales were £1,372.9 million (2017/18: £1,411.3 million excluding Studioworks) and EBITDA was £159.4
million (2017/18: £105.0 million excluding Studioworks). For the fifth year runring, returns to the BBC, which
included dividends and investments in programming, were above £200 million at £243.3 million (2017/18: £209.9
million). These results show success in BBC Studios’ care ambition: te create and deliver the highest quality British
story-telling, with extracrdirary range and depth.

Moving forward, the ousiness is firmly focused on growing its contributions te the BBC, its audiences and the wider
industry, both creatively and financially, as it transforms its approach to better serve consumers around the world,
consolidating its culture and promoting creativity across the board.

Strategic approach

BBC Studios is focused on three strategic priorities: to boost BBC-owned content and IP through world-class content
creation and investmert in production, indies and talent; to grow existing franchise brands and to build new ones; and
to grow its share of high-value customers and markets through active development of existing and potential
relationships. An outline of the developments in each area throughout the year is below.

Content

The business continues to perform extremely well in premiurm content, and is working actively to develop its
programming pipeline. Far the BBC in the year, BBC Studias made acclaimed drama like Luther, Silent Witness | and
MotherFatherSan ; world-class natural history including Dynasties and Farth’s Greet Rivers’ and impactful science
programmes like Horizon: Stopping Male Suicide, The Truth About... The Menopause and Trust Me, I'm A Doctor .
Elsewhere, Hold the Sunset, Two Doors Down and Famalam sat alongside thougnt-provoking factual titles like
Winterwatch , The Flu That Killed 50 Million , David Bowie: Finding Fame and American History’s Biggest Fibs . The live
events team covered The Roya! Wedding: Prince Harry and Meghan Markle and the Royal British Legion Festival of
Remembrance .

Fatberg Autopsy was broadcast on Channet 4, BBC Studios’ first title for a non-BBC broadcaster, swiftly followed by
Royal Wedding Watch for PBS, Stargazing Live 2 for ABC TV in Australia, The Bermuda Triangle Enigma for Channel 5
and Sex Knives and Liposuction for UKTV's W channel. in addition, Chocolate Dreams - Inside Hotel Chocolat was
broadcast on Channel 5 in January.

In the year, five titles were put out to tender by BBC Commissioning as part of the BBC's progress to meeting the
contestability obligations established in the 2076 Charter and Agreement for all BBC returning series made by BBC
Studios. BBC Studios retained one (Later with Jools Holland... ) during 2018/19 and twc more after year-end {Topical
Arts and Countryfile ), losing the other two tenders (BBC Proms and Mastermind ). Ta date, this puts the number of
titles retained after tendering at seven cut of ten.

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019 &



Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements
Strategic report continued

Content continued

New commissions won in the year included Planet Earth Il and Frozen Planet il for the BBC, inside the Duchy for ITV,
The Wateh for BBC AMERICA, Danny Dyer on Pinter for Sky Arts and Stay Free: The Story of the Clash for Spotify. BBC
Studios’ adaptation of Terry Pratchett ard Neil Gaiman's story of an angel and demon, Good Omens , with an
ensemble cast led by Michael Sheert and David Tennant, finished production in the year, ahead of its premiere on
Amazon at the end of May, with a subsequent appearance on BBC Two.

The outstanding creativity and craft of the BBC Studios production team was recognised by 79 award wins, and close
to 300 nominations in the year. These include Royal Television Society awards for one-off drama Killed by my Debt,
live coverage of The Royal Wedding: Prince Harry and Meghan Markle , comedy Inside No. 9 and Strictly Come Dancing
won a National Television Award.

Supporting British creativity beyond the BBC remains one of BBC Studios’ commitments, and BBC Studios is
nurturing its relationships with best-of-Sritish indies in ways to suit them: with equity stakes in 16; first look/output
deals with a further 17; and representing content from ove~ 200. Award-winning transattantic hit Killing Eve was
made by Sid Gentle (part-owned by BBC Studios) for BBC AMERICA, as commissioning broadcaster. it was shown in
the UK on BBC One and a secend series aired in America and the UK shortly after year end.

Brands

The business continues to invest in its international brands. Jodie Whittaker was a hit as the first female Doctor Who,
made by BBC Studios in Cardiff. In the Planegt strand of landmark programming, the world-renowned BBC Studios
Natural History Unit has a pipeline of titles in production. The new presenter tine-up for series 27 of Top Gear
debuted in June, and Strictly Come Dancing brought the family together on the Saturday night sofa, with an audience
for the final of 12.9 million (55% share). The first Dancing with the Stars brand extension in the US launched with
Dancing with the Stars: Junjors .

BBC Studics is also working on development of new brands. In Australia, up-and-coming Children’s title Biuey, based
on the life of a Blue Heeler dog family in Queensland, co-commissioned with ABC Kids and set to air on CBeeb'es
Australia next year, has been a huge success with critics and audiences alike.

Markets

The business has continued to evolve its approach to important customers and markets, including the building of
deeper strategic partnerships to secure and grow revenue. In the US and Canada, subscribers to BritBax, the SV0OD
joint venture majority cantrolled by ITV and BBC Studios, reached the half million mark at under two years. A three-
year deal with Chinese internet company Tencent will expand an existing content licensing and co-production
partnership, and build a social media community around natural history programming.

in the UK, the BBC is warking to create a commercial video-on-demand partnership with ITV and others, under the
BritBox brand, to which BBC Studios will supply content.

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2015 7




Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements
Strategic report continued

Markets continued

At the end of the financial year, BBC Studios reached three significant deals with Discovery. First, ar agreement on
the future of the 50/50 joint venture for UKTV's channeis ousiness in the UK. This will see the division of channel
assets to complement the strategic focus and commercial business of bath organisations. BBC Studios will acquire
the seven channels most closely aligned to the BBC's content strategy — Alibi, Dave, Drama, Eden, Gold, Yesterday
and W - along with digital player UKTV Play, and the UKTV brand. Alongside this, it will make balancing payments aof
£173 million tc Discovery, over two years.

BBC programmes currently deliver half the viewing for these seven channels. BBC Studios will look to grow
investment into UK programming, inctuding originat content, for the UKTV channels it will own, and in turn the
transaction will secure an important element of the BBC Studios business for the [org term. It will also simplify the
way BBC Studios can offer its rights to market in the UK.

Separately, the two companies have agreed a multi-year global centent partnership in two parts, This will see BBC
Studios provide premium factual series, including naturat history landmarks, for Discovery's new global streaming
service, and a bespoke development deal for BBC Studios te create ideas for future Discovery commissions.

Taken together, these deals cement an important partnership that will deliver long-term returns for licence fee
payers, underpinning investment in original content for UK audiences, as well as a boost for those enjoying the BBC's
programming internationally.

Operational review

2018/19 is the first year of operation for the merged business. The performance represented a strong start across
BBC Studios’ two key operating segments with earnings hefore interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
of £159.4 million (2017/18: £105 million excluding Studioworks), up 52%. EBITDA, excluding the year on year benefit
of foreigr exchange, was up 21%.

This very strang EBITDA performance and cash generation has allowed the business to reduce its borrowings {net
debt at year end of £45.7 miltion) {2017/18: £126.6 milion) whilst still achieving a record year of investment and
returns to the BBC. This streng balance sheet position will allow BBC Studios to finance the purchase of UKTV and to
further invest in producing warld-class content. BBC Studios’ agreed borrowing facility was increased te £300 millien
(2017/18: £270 million) on 31 March 2019.

Taxation
Before the impact of production tax credits, the effective tax rate for the year was 21% (2017/18: 9%).

Performance by operating segment
The business segments this year have been changed to reflect the way the BBC Studios Executive Committee (SEC)
manages and tracks its performance following the merger in Aprit 2018.

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019 8



Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements
Strategic report continued

Performance by operating segment continued
The segmental analysis below inciudes allocation of all central costs — strong cost control in these areas, along with
the points below, enabied the business to show E3ITDA growth. The prior year amounts exclude Studioworks.

2019 2018
Statutory Statutory

Sales EBITDA Sales EBITDA

£m £m £m £m

Production and Distribution 1,0475 815 1,094.6 33.9
Branded Services 161.0 709 159.5 60.8
Caore Group eliminations {19.3) 70 (18.5) 10.3
Total 1,189.2 159.4 1,235.6 105.0

Production and Distribution

The Production and Distribution business includes the proguctior and distribution of scripted and unscripted
pragrammes to broadcasters and platform owners, including BBC Studios’ share of the results of joint venture and
associate production companies, format sales, and other content and brand-associated licensing and merchandise.

Production and Distribution ach eved growth in EBITDA of 140%. The UK production business performed well in its
second full year of opecation as a commercial entity with both sales and EBITDA ahead of the prior year (9% and
288%). Genres perfarming well include scripted, factual entertainment and events,

The international production business delivered a small growth in sales and invested additicnal operating
expenditure in a new procuction arm in Australia. This was set up in September, and already has its first commission
for 85 episodes of Mastermind for SBS. In the US the autumn of 2018 saw the premiere of the first Dancing with the
Stars brand extension in Dancing with the Stars: Juniors for ABC. The first female Doctor was welcomed with much
anticipation at 5an Diego Comic-Con and at year end, a content deal was struck with MotarTrend to stream the
majority of the Top Gear UK catalogue in addition to a new US version for its service.

Independent production companies in which BBC Studios holds stakes in continued to grow, and the shareholding in
premium scr'pted indie Lookout Point was increased from 49.9% to 100% in July 2018, New investments in the year
included drama start-ups Moonage and Firebird, both from proven British creative talent. BBC Studios returned
£175.6 million {2017/18. £148.6 million) to indies through rights investment and royalties within the year.

In Content Sales the business broadened and deepened strategic relationships with key customers, entering into a
wider set of partnerships and securing long term commitments, as demonstrated by the content partrership with
Discovery. Creative deal-making came to the fore as the value of the distribution business continued to evolve from
pure licensing to funding creativity, as shown in deals for titles such as His Dark Materials, Dracula and Good Omens .
It also saw notable success in scripted format sales in Asia with Doctor Foster to South Korea, Mistresses to Japan
and Life an Mars ta China, taking the total of scripted format sales in this region to 15 in recent years. Elsewhere,
infidele, the first scripted format deal in France of Doctor Foster, was a ratings success for TF1.

The Consumer Products business saw a sigrificant further decline in the physical media market. As a result of this
market decline, goodwill relating to the 2Entertain business was part-impaired with this being offset by a profit
generated by the sale of the Good Focd business, a high-performing but non-core area, in August.

BRC Studios Limited
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Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements

Strategic report continued

Branded services

The Branded Services business includes the activities of the BBC-branded channels and digital consumer
propositions, including the share of results from joint venture and associate operations in BBC AMERICA, BritBox,
and UKTV, BBC Earth with Seny and those of digital branded services including BBC Player in Asia.

Branded Services’ nerformance in the year showed growth in EBITDA of 17%. The performance of BritBox in the US
and Canada, which is 40.5% owned by BBC Studios and accounted fo- as a joint venture, was particularly healtny.
UKTV performance remained robust,

Commissioner of stand-out international hit series Killing Eve , BBC AMERICA continued to deliver strong ratings
growth, with its second most watched year ever across all key day parts.

In under two years, BritBox achieved half a million subscriters across the US and Canada, ahead of all targets. BBC
Learning, globally managed out of the Americas, secured significant deals with education companies ProQuest, FMG
and Stemscopes, as well as a multi-million dollar deal that brings together the BBC World Service, Microsoft
Education and Angelina Jolie's production company to deliver a three-year programme, teaching rmedia titeracy skiils
to middle school classroams globally.

Th's year also saw the renewal of affiliate partnerships for BBC-brandec channels carriage with NC+ in Poland and
the launch of BBC Earth channels in the Middle East, Turkey, Czech Republic, Slovakia and Cyprus, as well as
CBeebies in Turkey and the Matdives. BBC First launched in Poland as a rebrand from B3C HD. In Australia anc New
Zealand, new channel launches included BBC Living on Fetch in May and BBC Earth an SKY [n October.

Forward view

The merger of BBC Studios’ production and distribution businesses is complete, giving [t a strong position in the
global market, and the business is weil on track to meet its stated target of delivering £1.2 billion of returns to the
BBC in the first five years of the current Charter period. The business environment remains changeable, with
continuing levels of uncertzinty in the major global econemies. The markets in which BBC Studios operates continue
to change rapidly, with audiences across the board now exercising control over their consumption of media: what,
where and when. The need for business transformation is stilt significant and delivering expected margins in a world
of hyper-competition is challenging.

BBC Studios' goal is to be the best British content company in the world. It looks to inspire audiences around the
world with bold British creativity. To do this it will secure talent, rights and ideas for the future, and through these, it
will return cash and funding for content to the BBC.

There is a growing global demand for premium content, fram which BBC Studios is well positioned to benefit. A key
focus on customer insight and account management, including strategic partnerships, will ensure that the business
continues to respond to this demand. BBC Studios’ strength in production is a key selling point internationally, and
post-year end it has secured a number of new commissions with both domestic broadcasters and international

companies.

BBC Studios Limited
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Strategic report continued

Forward view continued

BBC Studios’ brand and digital storytelling expertise will continue to drive engagement as well as deveicp new
commercial madels for emergirg digital entrants. in additior, the business pians to invest further in premium
content, with the impact of these plans already showing in the increased returns te the BBC in the financial year. This
will resutt in lower free cash generation in 2019/20.

8BC Studios will contimue to work hard to build and grow its brands internat'onally, searching for ways to boost the
value of existing franchises and identifying opportunities for new brands. The business is actively seeking like-minded
companies to partner with at every point in the process, from finding a new idea te making and expleiting content,
through to developing new business models for funding.

Achieving growin and consalidating relationships across content, custormers and brands will enable the business to
increase its contribution to the BBC beth creatively and financially, in an environment where IP generation and
ownership are bath critical. BBC Studies Fas ambitiaus plans to build a world-class culture that attracts and retains
the finest tatent, and with content at its heart, and an unparalleled position in high quality British IP, the business is
well placed to meet stretching expectations for the coming year and beyond.

Information requested by BBC Studios' regulator, Ofcom

The Group provides financial informatien on a periedic basis to the regulator Ofcom. The information provided is on a
prior format and EBITDA definition to that currently used by the Group. To aid transparency, this infermation is
shown below, along with a reconciliation to the Group EBITDA.

2019 2m9

Statutory Ofcom

sales defined

EBITDA

£m £m

UK Production 602 83
international Production 142 3
Branded services 161 71
Content sales 404 12

Consumer Products 108 (2)

Hedging and eliminations (228) (5)
Total 1,189 162

The definition of EBITDA for reporting to Ofcom results in a £3m variance to the £159m EBITDA reported in these
accounts.

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019 1
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Strategic report continued

Future outlook

While the external commercial environment is expected to remain competitive in 2019, BBC Studios Limited is well
diversified, both geographica.ly and by business, and this should provide the Group with the resilience to cope with

adverse economic conditions.

Risk and uncertainties
BBC Studios considers its key risks and uncertainties to be as follaows:

Mitigation

Risk Strategic impacts

Brand, reputation and standards Harm to our reputation, our
Audiences lose confidence in the relationship with audiences
integrity of the business or its content and to the credibility of the
and editorial values. Failure to B8C brand.

represent the values of the BBC to
global audiences, or improve
workforce diversity, representation
and gender pay balance.

Joint venture and associate ower commercial returns
relationships for independents and the UK
Failure to achieve the full potential licence fee payer.

from an independent production Curtailing of ambitions and
company, joint venture (JV) and strategy for each invested
associate relationships. service or entity.

Information and content security Loss of confidence in the

Risk that information security controls Group's role as a global
could be compromised and systems  distributor. Reduced
disrupted. Significant commercial and editorial or commercial vatue
reputational damage from any from disclosed assets.
uncontrolled release of content. Sales

and margin erosion from piracy.

Leadership, managers and staff embody
behaviours consistent with BBC values,
suppo-ted by internal communications,
leadership brief ngs, and HR processes.
Editorial Policy framework supported by
specialists, with experienced genre heads and
deal approvat frameworks. Executive
sponsecred programme for increasing ethnic
and gender diversity. External review of
disclosure and transparency.

Defined accountabilities for indie and joint
venture relationships with BBC Studios'
Executive Commitiee cversight. Business
expertise with representation on indie and
joint venture Boards. Approvals framework
incorperates apprepriate safeguards over BBC
editorial values and control.

Robust information security infrastructure
and controls. Careful supplier management
and risk assessment with appropriate
contracting. Technical controls include
forensic watermarking and content
attribution.

BBC Studios Limited
371 March 2019
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Strategic report continued

Risk and uncertainties continued

Risk

Strategic impacts

Mitigation

Economic climate and trading
performance

Uncertainty in UK and international
economic conditicns. Adverttsing
sales revenues are the most
vulnerable and risk third-party
commissioning budgets and UKTV
returns. Risk from diverse exchange
rate movements.

Business continuity, safety and
security

Disruption to cperations,
infrastructure and loss of revenue
following a major incident. Globat
terrorism and the continued risk of
physical threats.

Global distribution competitors and
customer risk

Risk we do not reshape our business
and sales strategy to remain globat
distributer of choice for Independent
production companies, secure new
programme commissions from third
parties, and win competitive tenders
for returning series. Risk we are not
transforming our business fast enough
to keep pace with extraordinary
content inflation, ongoing
consolidatian in the creative sector,
and competitors with increasing
financial strength,

Production working capital
requirements

Increasingly competitive market,
competing for access to funding.

Adverse impact on cash
flows and reported financial
results.

Potential for injury, death
and loss of infrastructure
and services with disruption
to business operations.
Reputational risk if we fail to
protect our staff and all
others in aur care.

Lower visibility for BBC
contentinternationally.
Fewer commissions and
failure to secure tenders for
returning series.
Overdependence on key
customers, lower
commercial returns for
indies and the UK licerce fee
payer.

Failure to secure sufficient
funds to meet editorial
ambition and customer
requirements.

Business is diversified as a producer and
distributor, and across regions, titles and
revenue streams. Central management of
budgets, cash flow forecasting and prudent
debtor management. Debt headroom with
much improved cash conversion and balance
sheet strength. Comprehensive guarterly
performance review of every region and
business.

Security and safety management
arrangements supported by specialists, policy
framewaorks, forums, communications and risk
assessments. Offices and business operations
with business continuity leads and up-to-date
continuity plans. Travel safety training,
terrorism awareness training and a glabal
emergency naotification system.

Expertise inherent in the business and in-
depth local knowledge of internaticnal
markets. Sales strategy, sales infrastructure,
people skills anc business relationships in the
best place to respond to chalienges and offer
a competitive return to the licence fee payer
and indies. Business Develepment teams
focused on new opportunities. Growing
experience responding to programime tenders.
internal transformation to support margins
anc growth.

Management of budgets, production approval
process, cash flow forecasting and prudent
debt management ensure visibility and
management of cash reguirements.

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2015

13



Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements

Strategic report continued

Risk and uncertainties continued
Risk Strategic impacts Mitigation

Competitive production market
Increasingly competitive market, with  Failure to attract ta.ent and Leadership team in place with a clear focus on

large scale consolidated players deliver high guality content, developing and nurturing talent. The breadth
competing for taient on and off leading to a reduction in and diversity of the business supports career
screen. revenue. development and opportunities to work on a

range of content.

Regulatory and compliance
Patential for non-compliance with UK Civil or criminat challenge.  Robust, enforced framework including

and internationat laws, especially Financial penalties. mandataory training programmes, policies,
regulatory changes and legislation Reputationat damage. regular reporting and specialist committees,
with extra-territorial reach. Group wide Code of Conduct. Oversight by

senior management boards and Compliance
and Risk Committee. Embedded regional
expertise and local compliance champions.
Fair Trading framewark for compliance with
OFCOM trading and separation rules. NAG
Value for Maney reviews providing
transparency.

By arder of the Bgard,

18 June 2019

Registered Address
1 Television Centre
101 Wood Lane
London

W12 7FA

BBC Studios Limited
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Directors' report

Directors
The Directors, who servec during the year and up to the date of this report unless otherwise stated, are as
follows:

Tim Davie

Tom Fussell

Charlie Villar  (resigned 3 April 2018}

Financial instruments

The Group's financial risk management operations are carried out by a BBC Group Treasury function, within
parameters defined formally by the policies and procedures manual agreed by the BBC Board. Information about
the use of financial instruments by the Company and its subsidiaries is given in Note 28 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ interests and indemnities

No Director had any interest in the share capital of the Group througheut the financia: year. No rights were
granted to subscribe for shares or debentures of the Company or any other group company to any of the
Directors or their immediate families, or exercised by them, during the financial year. Directors' and Officers'
liability insurance cover was in place throughout the financial year as appropriate.

Employee participation

The Group participates in a range of approaches in ensuring employee participation and involvement, Employee
feedback, thoughts and views are measured and tracked through arange of methods including the pan-BBC
survey, which are subsequently used to develop detailed action plans. The Group also has a range of staff
leadership and personal development programmes and is committed to fostering constructive relations with our
recognised trade unians.

Diversity

Recruiting and developing a diverse workforce that is representative of contempaorary British society is central to
the modern BBC and to BBC Studios Limited as a subsidiary of the BBC. Creating a diverse workforce is part o*
the BBC's Diversity Strategy.

This has been developed into a workabte framework and mechanisms for systematic action planning and
reporting across four key areas:

* corporate strategy and business planning — ensuring equality and diversity are part of alf strategic decision-
makirg and business planning;

* audiences - understanding and responding to our diverse audiences, through research, audience engagement
and outreach initiatives:

* output - creatively reflecting the diversity of our audiences acrass all our platforms, and in the development
of new services and technology; and

* waorkforce - a workforce that reflects the diversity of modern Britain and an inclusive work envirenment.

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019 15
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Directors' report continued

Training and development

Staff in all areas have opportunities to develop their skilis. The Group organises comprehensive in-house and
external training programmes, covering job-specific skill enhancement, IT software tuition and management
development.

Health and safety
Respoensibility for health and safety across the Group is delegated to the boards of each of the Company's
subsidiaries.

Disabled persons

Disabled persons are fully and fairly considered for vacancies arising withir the Group and are given equal
opportunities in relation to training, career development and promoticn. Existing employees who become
disabled are retained in employment wherever possible, after the provision of any necessary rehabilitation or
training.

The environment

The Group does not operate in industries where there is potential for serious industrial pollution, however it
recognises its responsibility to be aware of and take steps to control and minimise any damage its business might
cause to the environment.

Corporate governance

The 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code, issued by the Financial Reporting Council and setting out principles of
good corporate governance is not applicable te BBC Studios Limited as a private timited company but the BBC
Group voluntarily complies where appropriate. Disclosure of how the BBC complies may be obtained from
www_bbc.co.uk/annualreport.

Political and charitable contributions
The Group made no political donations or contributions to charity during the year.

Dividends
Dividends of £65.3 million were declared by the Group during the year (2018: £139.1 million).

Future developments
See the Strategic report for details on the Group's future outlogk.

Going cancern

As set out on page 28, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the business has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, and accordingly the going concern basis continues to
be adopted in the preparation of the accounts,

BBC Studios Limited
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Directors' report continued

Post balance sheet events

Cn 11 June 2019, the UKTV group, a joint venture previously owned by BBC Studios Distribution Limited and
Sauthbank Media Limited, was demerged and had its ownership restructured. The three leisure-themed channels
were separated from the group, and BBC Studios obtained 100% ownership and control of UKTV Haldings
Limited and its remaining seven entertainment channels, as well as UKTV Play and the UKTV brand. Please refer
to note 33 for further details.

Auditor

The Natiornal Audit Office served as independent external auditor for the year ended 31 March 2019 and

31 March 2018. The National Audit Office have expressed their willingness to continuza in office and a resalution
to reappoint them will be proposed at the next board meeting.

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the persons wha is a director at the date of approval of this annual report canfirms that:
* so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit infarmation of which the Company's auditer is
unaware; and
* the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in arder to make himself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

By order of the Board.,

Company secretary
18 June 2019

Registered address
1 Television Centre
101 Wood Lane
Londan

W12 /FA

BRBC Studios Limited
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Statement of directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic report, the Directors’ report and the Group and parent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulazions.

Company law reguires the directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law they have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU and applicable taw and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicabie taw (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that
period. In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis until it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the Company will continue in business;

* for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as
adopted by the EU; and

* for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Compantes Act 2006.
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to therm ta safequard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

BBC Studios Limited
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Independent auditor's report to the members of BBC Studios Limited

Opinion on financial statements

| have audited the financial statements of BBC Studics Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 which comprise
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the group and parent
batance sheet, the cansolidated statement of changes in equity and the related notes, including the significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable Law
and the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union for the Group and the
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}, for the parent
cempany financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In my cpinion the financial statements:

* give atrue and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of the profit for the
year then ended; and

* the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European tnion; and

* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Basis of opinions

| conducted my audit in accerdance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
staternents section of my report. Those standards require me and my staff to comply with the Financial Reporting
Councit's Revised Ethical Standard 2016. | am irdependent of BBC Studios Limited in accordance with the ethical
reguirements trat are relevant to my audit and the financiat statements in the UK. My staff and | have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requiremerts. | believe that the audit evidence | have
abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

I am required to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt an the BBC Studios Limited’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of
at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
entity to cease to continue as a gaing concern. We have nothing to report in these respects,

Respansibilities of the directors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsibie for:
* the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
* suchinternal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
* assessing the group and company’s ability to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, if applicabte, matters
relating to geoing concern and using the gaing cancern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liguidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

BBC Studios Limited
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ndependent auditor's report to the members of BBC Studios Limited continued

Auditor's responsibitities for the audit of the financial statements
My responsibility is tc aucit and express an opinion on the financial staterments in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing ({SAs) (UK).

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise
frorr fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with i1SAs (UK), | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughoeut the audit. | also:

* identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and apprepriate to provide a basis for my apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting fram fraud is higher than for one resulting from errer, as fraud may invelve coltusion, forgery,
intentional ormissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controt.

* obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
group and BBC Studios Limited’s internal control.

* evaluate the approgriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financiat statements, including the
disclasures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* abtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group tc express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. | am responsible
for the direction, supervision and perfermance of the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit
opinion.

[ communicate with those charged with governance regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that |
identify during my audit.

BBC Studios Limited
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Independent auditor's report to the members of BBC Studios Limited continued

Other information

Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. My opinian an the financial
statements does not caver the other inforrmation and | co not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with my audit of the finandial statements, my respensibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially incansistent with the financial statements or my
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work | have
performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In my opinion:

* inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the company and its environment obtained in
the course of tne audit, | have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the
Directors’ Report; and

* the information given in the Strategic and Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and those reports have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which | report by exception
| have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires me to report
to you if, in my epiniomn:

* adequate accounting records have nol been kept by the company, or returns adequate for my audit have not
been received from branches not visited by my staff; or

* the financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* | have not received all of the infarmation and expianations [ require for my audit.

Stephen Smith (Senior Statutory Auditor)

18 June 2019

for and on behaif of the

Comptroller and Auditor General {Statutory Auditor)
MNational Audit Office

157-197 Buckirgham Palace Road

Victoria, London

SW1TW 9sP
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Note £m £m

Headline sales including share of joint ventures' revenue* 13729 14184
Less: share of joint ventures' revenue (183.7) (175.7
Revenue 2 1,189.2 1,2427
Total pperating costs 3a (1,139.8) {1,206.5)
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 17 359 358
Operating profit 853 720
Operating profit reconciled as:
EBITDA ia 158.4 104.2
Praduction tax credits 9k {31.0) (16.4}
Depreciation and amortisation 3b {43.1) (15.8)

853 720
Gains on disposals 4 356 21.2
Other gains and losses 5 151 9.4
Financing income 8a 2.0 1.4
Financing costs 8b {5.6) {4.3)
Profit before taxation 1324 997
Taxation 9a 35 7.2
Profit for the year 1359 1069
Attributable to:
Equity shareholder of the parent company 135.0 1056
MNon-controlling interests D9 1.3
Profit for the year 1359 1069

*  The non-statutory perfarmance measure of ‘headline sales including share of joint ventures' revenue' is explained in more detail in the

Statement of Group Accounting Policies

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2015

2019 2018
Note £m £m
Profit for the year 1359 106.9

ltemns that are or may be reclassified to the income statement in the future:
Tax an cash flow hedges taken directly to ather comprehensive income (0.3} (4.9}
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 25 15.1 {(28.4)
Net gains on foreign exchange cash flow hedges 1.7 259
Other comprehensive iIncome/{loss) for the year (net of tax) 165 (7.4)
Total comprehensive income for the year 152.4 99.5

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent company 151.5 98.2
Non-controlling interests 09 13
152.4 995
BBC Studios Limited
23
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 March 2019

2019 2018 2017
Nate £m £rm £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 12 335 357 355
Distribution rights 13 129.0 1105 1625
Otherintangible assets 14 358 29.8 256
Property, plant and eguipment 15 24.0 26.8 359
Interests in joint ventures and associates 17 243.0 226.0 2450
Investments - 06 73
Trade and other receivaoles 18a 323 465 728
Derivative financ'al assets 28 0.6 01 0.1
Deferred tax assets 9d 10.6 5.9 131
508.8 4819 5979
Current assets
Programme related assets and other inventories 16 147.4 1693 665
Trade ard other receivables 18D 4217 3822 39472
Current tax assets Qe 12.4 26.1 178
Derivative financial assets 28 1.0 2.4 0.1
Cash and cash equivalents 21 492 453 57.2
631.7 6253 5359
Total assets 1,140.5 1,107.2 71,1338
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20a {340.5) {351.7) (378.8)
Contract liabilities 2d {126.5) (79.3) (80.9)
Borrowings 22a (8.5) {Q.9) -
Provisions 23 (15.00 (9.1) (5.6)
Derivative financial liabilities 28 (1.1) {2.0] (25.4)
Current tax liabilities 5f (7.8) {10.9) 1.4
(499.4) (453 9) {489.3)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payabtes 20b (35.5) (65.9) (30.5)
Contract tighilities 2d (21.1) (4.8) (8.0)
Borrowings 22b (86.4) 171.00 (183.8)
Provisions 23 (3.1) (1.4} (N
Derivative financial liabilities 28 {0.3) {C.6) (6.9
Deferred tax liabilities 3d (16.0) (12.3) (31.5)
{162.4) (256.0) [262.8)
Total tiabilities (661.8) {705.9} (752.1}
Net assets 478.7 3973 3817
Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company
Share capital 24 01 01 1.3
Retaired earnings 25 464.1 3993 3521
Hedging reserve 25 11 0.3 (21.3)
Translation reserve 25 357 206 499
Other reserve 25 (24.0) (240) 0.5
4770 3957 3816
Non-controlling interests 1.7 1.6 0.4
Total equity 478.7 3973 3820

The consclidated financial statements of BBC Studios Limited, registered number 04463546, were approved by the Directors and
authorised for issue on 18 June 2019 and signed on their behalf by

~

Tom Fussell l lVLlM

Director
BBC Studios Limited
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 March 2019

Non-
Share  Retained Hedging Translation Other controlling
capitat earnings reserve reserve reserve Total interests Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 31 March 2017 1.3 352.1 (21.3) 450 0.5 3816 0.4 382.0
Profit for the year - 1056 - - - 105.6 1.3 106.9
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign cperations - - - {(28.4) - (28.4) - (28.4)
Tax on cash fiow hedges taken
directly to other comprehersive
income - - {4.9) - - (4.9) - (4.9)
Net gairs on foreign exchange cash
flow hedges - - 25.9 - - 259 - 259
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year - 1056 210 {28 4) - 98.2 13 995
Issue of share capital 495 - - - - 495 - 495
Share capital reduction (50.7} 50.7 - - - - - -
Dividends geclared and paid in year
(note 10) - (109.1) - - - {109.1) - {109.1}
Acquisitton of entities under
cemmon control {note 11) - - - - 0.2 0.2 - 0.2
Release of financial assets - - - - (2.9) (2.9) - (2.9)
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - (21.8) (21.8} 0.1) {21.9)
At 31 March 2018 as previously
stated” 0.1 3993 {0.3) 206 (24.0) 3957 16 3973
First time adoption of IFRS 15* (see
accounting pelicies) {19) - - - {4.9) . {4.9)
At 31 March 2018 Restated Q.1 394.4 {0.3) 20.6 (24.0} 390.8 1.6 392.4
Profit for the year - 1350 - - - 1350 09 1359
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations - - - 15.1 - 151 - 15.1
Tax on cash flow hedges taken
directly to other comprehensive
incame - - 0.3) - - (0.3 - {0.3)
Net gains on foreign exchange cash
flow hedges [note 28) - - 1.7 - - 1.7 - 1.7
Total comprehensive income for
the year - 135.0 1.4 15.1 - 1515 0.9 152.4
Cividends declared and paid in year
{note 10) - {65.3) - - - {65.3) (0.8} {66.1}
At 31 March 2019 0.1 464.1 1.1 357 (24.0) 477.0 1.7 478.7

*  The Group nas appliec IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information 1s not restated. See

note 2

BBC Studios Limited
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018

Nota £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 2732 1840
Receipt of tax credits 299 113
Tax pa.d {23.3) (18.4)
Net cash inflow from operations 2798 176.9
Cash flows from investing activities
Financing incame 8a a7 Q0.5
Proceeds from sale of operations 320 377
Proceeds from disposal of financial assats - 88
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures and associates - 19
Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash aguired (2.4) (8.2)
Acquisition of interests in joint ventures and associates E)] (11.8)
Purchases of distribution rights 13 {1708 {117.8)
Purchases of other intangible assets (14.7) (5.0
Purchases or property, plant and equipment 15 (2.4} (8.6)
Amounts advanced to related parties - {0.3)
Repayments by related parties - 4.3
Dividends paid to minarity interests (0.8) -
Dividends received from associates and joint ventures 269 393
Net cash used in investing activities (134.9) {522)
Cash flows from financing activities
Financing costs 8h (3.2) (3.7)
Proceeds from increase in barrowings 10.7 (0R-)
Repayments of berrowings {85.0) {17.4)
Equity dividends paid 10 (65.3) (109.1)
Net cash used in financing activities (1428) (129.3}
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2.1 (11.6}
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of the year 453 57.2
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 18 (0.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 452 453
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Statement of Group accounting policies

BBC Studios Limited (the ‘Company'} is a comgpany domiciled and incorperated in the United Kingdom, and its
registered address is 1 Television Centre, 107 Wood Lare, London, W12 7FA. The consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiary undertakings {tcgether
the 'Group’) and the Group's interest in jaint ventures and associated undertakings.

This section explains the Group's main accounting policies, which have heen applied consistently throughout the
year and in the preceding year.

Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements for the Group have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU and the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are principally prepared on the histarical cost basis. Areas where other bases are applied
are identified in the accounting policies below. The results and financial position of each groun company are
expressed in pounds sterling to the nearest £100,000, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

Where items are sufficiertly significant by virtue of their size or nature, they are disclosed separately in the finarcial
statements ir order to aid the reader's understanding of the Group's financial performance. Such items are typically
gains or losses and will be shown separately in the income statement.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Non-statutory financial performance measures

The Group believes that headtine sales including share of JVs and associates revenue (gross revenue earned by the
Group including the Group's share of income from its joint ventures and associates) and 'EBITDA' are additional non-
statutory measures of financial performance that provide additional guidance to help understand the performance
of the business on a comparabie basis year on year.

EBITDA is defined as operating profit plus production tax credits, excluding depreciation and amortisation with the
exception of amortisation relating to distribution rights or programming. Depreciation and amortisation include any
impairments or write-downs of assets {tangible or intangible), and in the prior year excluded £0.4m in relaticn to
investment impairments (note 3b).
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Going concern
The Board remains satistied with the Group's funding and liquid:ity position.

At the balance sheet date, the Group's brimary source of funding is a £270.0 million muiticurrency loan facility with
the immediate parent, B3C Commercial Holdings Limited, expiring in September 2020. As at the year-end, the
Group had drawn down £85.3 miltion of the facilities available {2018: £171.0 miltion).

The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasorably possible changes in trading performance, show
that the Group should be able to operate with the leveis of its existing facilities for a period of no less than 12
months from the date of signing these financial statements.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Basis of consolidation

The Group accounts include the results of BBC Studios Limited and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.
Where necessary, adjustments are made ta the finarcial statements of subsidiaries, jaint ventures and associates to
bring the accounting policias used into line with those used by the Group. All intra-group transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised gains from transactions with associates and joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the entity. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the
same way as uniealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved where the Group has the power, directly or
indirectly, ta govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to cbtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. The
results of subsidiaries are included in the financiat statements from the date that control commences to the date
that control ceases.

Non-controliing interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. The interests of
non-controlling shareholders are initially measured at their proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s

identifiabie net assets. Subsequent to acqussition, the carrying amount of non-controtlling mterests is increased ar
decreased in proportion to the nan-controlling interests' share of any subsequent changes in equity.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of cantrol are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amaounts of non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect any changes in their, and the
Group's, relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the ron-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed te the owners of the company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i}
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest (net of
disposal costs) and (i) the previous carrying amount of the net assets of the subsidiary (including attributable
goodwill) and any non-controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are reclassified to the income statement or transferred directly to retained earnings as
appropriate. The fair value ot any interest retained in the former subsidiay at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the cost on initial recagnition of an investment in a joint venture and associate.

Joint ventures and associates
Investments in joint ventures ard associates are initially recognised at cost. Tne carrying amount is increased or
decreased in subsequent periods to recognise the share of rotal comprehensive income,

The Graup accounts for its share of the results and net assets of its joint ventures and associates using information
as of 31 March with the exception of Children's Character Books Limited, Woodlands Books Limited, Educationat
Publishers LLP and JV Programmes LLC which have been included using information from unaudited accounts
drawn up to 31 Decernber. The impact of these non-coterminaus year ends is not considered material.

Where the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the joint venture or associate, the carrying
amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred tegal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture or associate.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Segmental analysis

Whilst not required by IFRS8 Operating Segments to present segmental information, such information nas been
provided in note 1 as it is cansidered meaningfut to the users of the accounts. The Group's operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).
The CODM, who is respensible for making strategic decisions, atiocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments has been identi‘ied as the Studios Group Executive Committee.

Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the cansideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenie recognition is based on the delivery of performance obligations and an
assessment of when control is transferred to the customer. The compiexity of individual cont-actual terms may
require the Greup to make judgements in assessing when the triggers for revenue recagnition have been met,
particularly whether the Group has sufficiently fulfilled its obligations under the contract to atlow revenue to be
recognised.

Revenue is recognised either when the performance ohligation in the contract has been performed (point in time'
recognition) or 'over time' as control of the performarnce obligation is transferred to the customer. A performance
abligation must meet one of the three criteria in IFR$15 to meet 'over time' recognition. The default category, if
none of these criteria are met, is 'point in time' recognition. Refer to the Group's revenue streams below for which
category the revenue recognition generally meets.

IFRS 15 provides more comprehensive guidance for contracts to licence intellectual property, ar contracts where
licence of inteliectual property is a significant component. Each performance obligation is identified and evaluated
as to whether it represents a right to access the content (revenue recognised over time) or represents a right to use
the content (revenue recognised at a point in tima}, and all three of the criteria referred (o above must be met to
meet the definition of a 'right to access' licence. The majority of the Graup's contracts to licence intellectual property
have defaulted to a 'right to use' licence and recognised at a 'point in time'.

The transaction price, being the amount to which the Group expects to be entitled and has rights to under the
contract is allocated to the identified performance cbligations. Most of the Group's revenue is derived from fixed
price contracts and therefore the amount of revenue to be earned from each contractis determined by reference to
those fixed prices. Exceptions are as follows: Royalties are generally set as a metric/percentage of sales generated,

The allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligaticons is at the amount that depicts the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled to in exchange for goods or services transferred. This is
generally dane in propartion to the stand-alone selling prices.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Revenue continued
The Group's main sources of contract revenue are recognised as follows:
* Content and format sales

Licence fees from programme content and programme formats are recegnised on the later of the start of the
licence period (taking into account any holdback dates) or when the Group's performance obligations have been
satisfied. For content sales the performance obligation will gererally be te deliver the associated programme to
the customer, therefore revenue is recognised ‘episodically’ - on delivery of each episode. For format sales, there
are twe performance obligations - to provide the format 'bible’ and in same cases production assistance.
Revenue is allocated to each of these performance obligations based on stand-alane selling prices and
reccgnition at the two separate ‘points in time'. The payment terms are over the term of the contract.

* Production revenue
Production revenue is recognised on delivery of the related programme or on a stage of completion basis,
depending on the nature of the contract with the customer, Revenue Is recognised either when the performance
obligation in the contract has been performed {point in time recognition) or 'over time' as control of the
performance abligation is transferred to the custormer. The payment terms are over the term of the cantract.

* Subscription fees
Subscription fees on pay channel platforms and from subscriptions to print and online publications and services
are recognised as earned, pro rata over the subscription period. The performance abligation is to provide the
subscription service over the period of the contract. This performance obligation meets the definition of right to
access' as the customer simultaneogusly receives and consumes the benefits as the Group provides the service.
Therefore, subscription fee revenue is recognised 'over time'. Minimum guarantees related to subscription fee
revenue are recognised pro-rata straight line over the contract life, in line with 'over time' recognition. The
payment terms are quarterly in arrears.

* Advertising revenue
Advertising revenue is recognised on transmission or publication of the advertisement. The performance
obligation is satisfied at this ‘point in time’ - when each advertisement occurs. The payment terms are over the
term of the contract.

* Consumer products
Reverue generated from the saie of consumer products is recognised at the time of delivery. Revenue from the
sale of goods is stated net of deduct'ons for actual and expected returns based on management judgement and
historical experience. The performance obligation s delivery of the products, and therefore revenue is
recagnised at a 'point in time”. The payment terms are over the term of the contract.

*  Royalties
Royalty income arising from sales and usage-based royalties are recognised at the later of when the subsequent
sales or usagc occurs, or the performance cbligation has been satisfied. Minimum guarantees related to royalty
income are recognised an delivery of the completed content to the customer, with any subsequent royalties
recognised as earnt. Therefore, royalty income is recognised at a ‘point in time'. The nayment terms are over the
term of the contract.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Revenue continued
Costs of obtaining long-term contracts and costs of fulfilling contracts
The cost of fulfilling contracts does not result in the recognition of a separate asset because:
* such costs are included in the carrying amount of inventory for contracts involving the sale of goods; and
* for service contracts, revenue is recognised over time by reference to the stage of completion meanirg that
control of the asset is transferred to the customer on a continuing basis as work 's carried out. Censequentiy, no
asset for work in progress is recognised.

The group has taken advartage of the practical exemptions:
* not to account far significant financing components where the time difference between receiving consideration
and transferring control of googcs {or services) to its customer is one year or less; and
* expensing the ircremental costs of obtaining a contract when the amortisation pericd of the asset otherwise
recagnised woutd have been one year or {ess.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency cf each entity of the Group at an
average exchange rate. Monetary assets and liabitities denominated in fareign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rate ruling on that date. Foreign exchange differences which arise on translation are recagnised in
the income statement.

The Group’s presentational currency is sterling. The income statements and cash flows of foreign operations are
translated into sterling at the weighted average rates for the year. The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from
the retranslation of the apening net assets of foreigr operations are taken directly to other comprehensive income,
together with the differences arising when income statements are translated at average rates compared with rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Cn disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in equity
relating to that operation is recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Lease payments

Assets beld under finance leases, whereby the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
are capitalised and depreciation is charged accordingty. Assets are capitalised at lease commencement at the lower
of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease paymerts are apportioned between
finance charges and reductions of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest an the remaining
balance of the liability.

All other leases are classified as operating ieases, The lease expense arising from operating leases is charged to the
income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. Any incentives to enter into operating leases
are recognised as a reduction of the lease expense and recorded on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (those
necessarily taking a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use) are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their intended use.

All finance income and other borrowing costs are recognised ir income and expense in the pericd in which they are
incurred.

Taxation

Current tax i$ based on taxable profit for the year, and is calculated using tax rates that nave been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income ar expenditure which are not taxable or deductible or which are
taxable or deductible in other years.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset if, and only if, there is a legally enforceabie right to offset the
recognised amounts; and the entity intencs either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
tiability simultaneously.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in future periods and is recognised using the balance
sheet liability method. This method provides for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Temperary
differences arising from goodwill and the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit are not pravided for.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiares, joint
ventures and associates except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temparary difference will nat reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxabie p-ofits will be available to allew all or part of the asset to be recovered.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the manner in which tax ‘s expected to arise and using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in
the income statement, except where it relates to items recorded within cther comprehensive income, in which case
the deferred tax is also recorded within other comprehensive ircome.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lizbilities are offset only where there is 3 legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax Liabilities; ard the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

= different tazxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expectad to be settled or recavered.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Intangible fixed assets

Programme rights for distribution

Distributicn rights resresent rights to programmes and asscciated intellectual property acquired with the primary
intention of exploiting the rights commercially as part of the Group's long-term operat.ons.

Distribution rights acquired by the group are either purchased, generated internally or l'censed folowing the
payment of an advance on royalties. Where the Group controls the respective assets and the risks and rewards
attached to them, rights are initially recognised at acquisition cost or production cost. The carrying amount is stated
at cost less accumutated amortisation and provision for impairment.

Amortisation of distribution rights is charged to the income statement to match the average revenue profile over its
estimated average marketable life.

Where the carrying value of any individual set of rights exceeds management's best estimate of future exploitation
reverues, a provision for impairment is recorded in the income statement immediately.

For self-produced content, distribution rights exclude co-production costs berne by third parties. These costs are
deferred within current assets and expensed upon recognition of the asscciated production income. Production
income is recognised in accordance with the Group's reverue recognition policies.

Business combinations and goodwill
Acquisitions on or after 1 April 2007 - on initial recognition goodwill represents the difference between the cost of
the acquisition and the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired.

Acquisitions prior to 1 April 2007 - as part of the adoption of IFRS, in accordance with IFRS 1 ‘First-time adoption of
IFRS', the Group elected to restate only those business combinations that occurred on or after 1 April 2007. In
respect of acquisitians prior to T April 2007, goodwill is recognised at deemed cost being the amount previously
recognised under UK Accounting Standards, subject to being tested for impairment at that date. Goodwill arising in
periods up to 1 April 1998 remains offset against the operating reserve, as was permitted by UK GAAP at the time.

Goodwil! arising on the acquisition of joint ventures and associates — this is included in the carrying amount of the
joint venture or associate and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance.

Subsequent measurement of separately recognised goodwill — goodwill is tested annually for impairment and is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Far the purpeses of impairment testing the goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units on the basis of those expected to benefit from the relevant business combination.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Intangible fixed assets continued

Other intongible assets

intangible assets acquired as part of a business acquisition are capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisition. The
fair value of such intangible assets is valued by reference to external market values or income based methods.
Income based methods estimate the future economic benefits to be derived from ownership of the asset by
identifying, quantifying and separating cash flows attributable to the asset and capitalising their present value.
Purchased intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost. After initial recognition, all intangible fixed
assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,

An internally-generated intangible asset arising frorn the Group's development, including software and website
development, is recognised when the asset is technically and commerciatly feasible, sufficient resources exist to
camptlete the development and 't is probable that the asset will generate future economic benefits. Any expenditure
on research activities, or development activities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation
With the exception of goodwill, which is not amortised, amortisation is charged on assets with finite lives on a

systematic basis over the asset’s useful life and disclosed within total operating costs in the incame statement.

The useful lives ard amortisation methads are as follows:

* Carrier agreements Straight line unexpired term of agreement
* Software (including internally-generated software} Straight line 1-5 years
* Other Straight line 3-8 years

Useful lives are examined every year and acjustments are made, where applicable, on a prospective basis.

Impairment of assets

Mon-financial assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Animpairment loss is
recognised in the income statement for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount; the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest tevels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units) and for which goodwil! is monitored for management purposes.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of goodwill allocated to those units, and then to reduce the carrying amount of other assets in the unit on a pro-rata
basis.

in ressect of assets other than goadwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciat’on or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. impairment losses in respect of goodwill are not reversed.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumu.ated impairment
{osses.

Cost includes expenditure thas is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment, less its estimated
residuat value, on a straight ling basis over its estimated useful life. The majer categories of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated as follows:

* Lland and buitdings
* Freehold land - not depreciated
* Freehold buildings - 50 years
* Freehold building improvements — 10 to 50 years
* long teasehold buildings — shorter of 50 years or life of lease
* Long leasehold building improvements - 10 to 50 years

* Plant and machinery
* Camputer equipment — 3 to 5 years
* Electrical and mechanical infrastructure — 10 to 25 years
*  Other-3ta 10 years

* Furniture and fittings - 3 to 10 years

Programme rights and other inventories

Pregramme rights in this context refers to the programme rights acguired for the primary purpose of broadcasting
through the regional channels operations. The carrying amount is stated at cost less accumulated amertisation and
provision for impairment. The Group’s estimate of the benefits received from these rights is determined to be most
appropriately aligned with a straight-line amortisation profile for the majority of the programme inventory held. The
cost is recagnised in the income statement an a straight-line basis over the period of the licence.

Other inventories, comprising CDs, DVDs, raw materials and wark in progress are stated at the lower of cost
{determined on a first-in-first-out basis) and net realisable value.

Work in progress relates to the costs of programmes in the course of production which were not delivered to the
programme commissioner by 31 March 2019 and comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct (abour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the assets to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities into one of the categories discussed below, depending on the
purpose for which the asset was acquired. Other than financial instruments in a qualifying hedging relationship, the
Group's accounting policy for each category is as follows:

Amortised cost

The Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents. The Group’s financial liahilities measurad at amortised cost comprise trade and other payables, contract
liahilities and borrowings. They principaliy arise from the provision of goods and services, but also incorporate other
types of financial assets/liabitities where the objective is to collect or receive contractual cash fiows and the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair vatue and subseguently at amounts considered recoverable
(amortised cost). Estimates are used in determining the level of receivables that will not be collected. These
estimates include factars such as histarical experience, the current state of the UK and overseas economies and
industry specifics. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is recognised based on the
simglified approach using the lifetime expectec credit losses.

Changes in the carrying amount of tne allowance are recognised in the income statement within total operating
costs.

Contract ligbilities
A contract liability is recognised when payment is received prior to the associated performance obligaticn being
fulfilled, It is released to revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied.

Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents camprise casn halances and call deposits with maturities of less than three months
{shart-term depasits).
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Financial instruments continued

Fair vatue through profit/loss

This category comprises derivatives. Those in-the-money derivatives are financial assets whilst those out-the-money
are financial liahilities.

The Group does nat enter into specutative derivative contracts; however, some cerivative financial instruments are
used to manage the BBC's exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates (foreign currency forwards
contracts and currency options).

Derivative financial instruments, excluding derivatives held as qualifying hedges, are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at the balance sheet date with movements recorded in the incame
statement.

Foreign currency forward contract rates
The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined by using the difference between the contract
exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rate at the reporting date from third parties.

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a compenent of a hybrid contract that also includes a non-derivative host - with the
effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts with a financial asset host within the scope of IFRS 9 are not
separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured as either amortised cost or fair
value as appropriate,

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts with hosts that are not financial assets within the scope of IFR5 9 {e.g.
financial liabilities) are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at fair value through profit/loss.

if the hybrid contract is a quoted financial liability, instead of separating the ambedded derivatives, the Group
generally designates the whote hybrid contract at falr value through profit/loss.

Other investments

The Group has strategic investments in listed and unlisted entities which are not accounted for as subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures, These investments were previously classed as available for sale under IAS 39, and
are now held at fair value through profit/loss.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Financial instruments cantinued
Fair value through other comprehensive income
Certain derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recognised at fair value through ather comprehensive income.

* Hedge accounting
Where hedge accounting is applied, the Group has elected to adopt the hedge accounting requirements of IFRS
9. The Group enters inta hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instruments and the
hedged item match. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the crigination of the hedging refatianship.

The Group designates certain derivatives as cash flow hedges by documenting the relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged (tem, along with the risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Where the hedge is deemed to have been effective, the effective
portion of any changes in the fair value of the derivatives that are designated in the hedge are recognised in
other comprehensive income. The accumulated amount in the cash flow hedge reserve is rectassified to profit or
loss in the same period as the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is
recegnised immediately in the income statement.

Retirement benefit plans

Employees of the Group also participate in defined benefit schemes operated by the Group's ultimate parent, the
BBC. The defined benefit schemes provide benefits based on pensicnable pay. The assets of the BBC's main pansicn
scheme, the BBC Pension Scherre, to which the majority of employees belong, are held separately from those of the
BBC Group.

The BBC Pension Scheme is a group-wide scheme and Lhere is nu contractual agreement or stated policy for
charging the niet defined benefit cost to scheme participants. The contribution rates are set by the pension scheme
trustees based on valuations which take a longer-term view of the assets required to fund the scheme’s liabilities.
Valuations of the scheme are performed by Willis Towers Watson, consulting actuaries, with formal valuations
undertaken at least every three years. Accordingly, the Group accounts for contributions payable to the scheme as if
the schemes were defined cantribution schemes, as is required by [AS 19 Employee Benefits.

Termination benefits

Termiration benefits are a component of restructuring provisions and are payable when employment is terminated
before the normal retirement date. They are recognised as an expense when the Group is demonstrably committed
to termination being when there is a detailed format plan to terminate employment without possibility of
withdrawal.

Other employee benefits
Other short and long term employee benefits, including holiday pay and long service leave, are recognised as an
expense over the period in which they accrue.

Dividends on shares presented within equity

Cividends are recognised through equity in the period in which they are dectared, Dividends unpaid at the batance
sheet date are only recognised as a liability at that date to the extent that they are appropriately authorised and are
no longer at the discretion of the Group. Unpaid dividends that do not meet these criterfa are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in confermity with IFRS requires the use of certain ¢ritical accounting
assumptions, and requires management to exercise its 'udgement and to make estimates in the process of applying
the Group's accounting paticies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Revenue recognition

The timing of revenue recognition requires judgement, as does the amount to be recognised. This may involve
estimating the far value of consideration before it is received. In making these judgements, the Group considers the
revenue recagnition criteria set out in IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and, in particular, whether the
Group had transferred the significant risks and rewards of the goods/services to the customer.

The complexity of individual contractual terms may require the Group to make judgements in assessing when the
criteria for recognising revenue have been met, particularly whether the Group has sufficiently fulfilled its
obligations under the contract tc allow revenue to be recognised.

Carrying value of goodwill

The detarmination of whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise fram the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the risks specific to the asset and the time value of money, in order to calculate present value. The
estimation process is complex due to the inherent risks and uncertainties associated with long-term forecasting. If
different estimates of the projected future cash flows or a different selection of an appropriate discount rate or long-
term growth rate were made, these changes could materially alter the projected value of the cash flows of the asset,
and as a consequence materially different amounts would be reported in the financial statements. Please refer to
note 12 for further details.

Basis of consclidation

Judgement is required in determining whether certain entities in which the Group has an economic interest should
be considered to be subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates. In such circumstances, the Group has assessed its
ability to control ar influence those entities. The Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has power aver
the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee),
exposure, or rights, to variabie returns from its involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect its returns. Where such policies are reserved such that an economic partner has the power o
veto key strateqic financial and operating decisions, the entity is considered to be a joint venture or associated
undertaking.

Fair value of financial instruments

Certa'n financial instruments are carried on the balance sheet at fair value, with changes ir fair value reflected in the
income statement. Fair values are estimated by reference in part to published price quotations and in part by using
valuation technigues.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Use of estimates and judgements continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment. Judgement is required when considering the factors in determining whether there 's objective evidence
of impairment; which include significant financial difficulty of the counterparty and breach of contract. Individualty
significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remainirg financial assets are
assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics, The amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash fiows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Allimpairment losses are recegnised in the income statement.

The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit losses of trade receivables from individual
customers. Loss rates are based cn actual credit loss experience over the past five years which are adjusted to
reflect differences between customer base during the period over which the historical data has been cotlected, as
wetll as any forward looking information regarding the Group's view of economic and industry wide conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financiai reporting purposes and those for taxation purpeses. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabil:ties. A deferred tax asset is
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to utilise the
temporary difference. Recognition of deferred tax assets therefore involves judgement regarding timing and tevel of
future taxable income.

Distnibution rights and programme rights

The assessmenrt of the appropriate profile over which to recognise the amortisation of distribution rights and
programme rights involves a certain degree of judgement. Amortisation is charged to the income statement to
match the average revenue profile of the programme genre over its estimated average marketable life.

Praovisions

Judgements are employed in determining if a past event has given rise to a present obligation that will result in
probable payment by the group that can be measured reliably. Estimation techniques are used, following the review
of such events, if it is determined that a provision is required. Such techniques are used in the calculation of the best
estimate of the amount required to settle obtigations, including determining how likely it is that expenditure will be
required by the group. This can be complex, especially when there is a wide range of possible outcomes. The BBC
reassesses whether there has been a change in this liability based on the facts and circumstances at each balance
sheet date. Any provisians that are payable over a number of years (cther than deferred tax) are discounted to net
present value at the balance sheet date using a discount rate appropriate to the particular provision concerned.

Rights creditors

Rights creditors arise from obligations to pay rights holders for the exploitation of content. These rights holders
include third party profit participants; contributors; talent unions; and coilecting societies. An element of the rights
creditors is subject to judgement when the information is not yet available to calculate the rate payable. in these
cases, the rate is estimated based on the best information available.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

First-time adoption of IFRS

These are the Group's first consclidated financial statements to be prepared under International Financial Reparting
Standards. In preparing these financial statements, the Group has started from an opening balance sheet as at 1
April 2017, the Group's date of transition to IFRS, and made those changes in accounting policies and other
restatements required for the first-time adoption of IFRS.

On transition to IFRS, the Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Finaricial
Reporting Stondards and following review, minimal adjustments to the financial statements of the Group were
required.

IFRS 1 requires financial reporting standards that were effective at the end of the reporting period to be applied
thraughout all the periods presented. The Group has assessed the ‘mpact of applying this requirement and has
determined that the impact is not material, with the exception of the reclassification of contract liabilities from
deferred income under [FRS 15 as presented in note 2d.

Adoption of new and revised accounting standards
The fallowing new and revised standards and interpretaticns have been adopted for the first time, as they became
effective for this financial year:

* IFRS 9 Fimancial Instruments

* [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (including Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers). See note 2.

* C(Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments to IFRS 2)

* Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts {Amendments to IFRS 4)

* Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

*  Annual improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 Cycle (Amendments 1o [FRS 1)

* Annual Improvements to [FRS 2014-2016 Cycle (Amendments to 1AS 28)

* IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

These have been applied since 1 April 2018 and have not had a significant impact on the results or financial position
of the Group with the exception of IFRS 15 [see note 2).
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations, which have
not been applied in these financial statements, were in issue but not yet effective {and in some cases had not yet
been adopted by the EU).

* IFRS 16 Leases

* IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over lncome Tax Treatments

* Amendments to IFRS G {Oct 2017) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

* Amendments to IAS 28 (Oct 2017) Long-term {nterests in Associates and Joint Ventures

* Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2075-2017 Cycle (Dec 2017)

* Amendments to IAS 19 (Feb 2018) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

* IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

* Amendments to IFRS 10 and |AS 28 (Sept 2014) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards and interpretations above would have a materiat
impact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods, except for IFRS 16.

IFRS 16 Leases (date of adoption: 1T April 2019) replaces IAS 17 1FRS 16 will impact the accounting for lessees. For
applicable lease agreements IFRS 16 wil require the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities, representing the
right to use the leased item and the respective future lease payments. The rental expense previously recognised
within the income statement witl be replaced by a gepreciation charge and a finance charge. This will apply to all
leases unless the term is less than 12 months or the underlying asset has a low value as the Group will utilise these
exemptions provided for under the standard.

A significant nurmber of lease transactions will be impacted by IFRS 16, with a number of judgements being required
to both identify and account for leases, When IFRS 16 is adopted it can be applied either on a fuily retrospective
basis, requiring the restatement of the comparative periods, or with the cumulative impact of the new standard
applied as an adjustment to reserves on the date of adoption. The Group will apply the latter approach, which will
also require the disclosure of the impact of the relevant accounting standard change on each line item in the
financial staterments in the reporting period.

The tikely impact on the consolidated income statement in 2Z079/20 is an increase of between £8 milion and £9
million to EB'TDA and an immaterial impact on profit before tax. Non-current assets and liabtlities are both
expected to increase by between £55 miilion and £60 million with the impact on net assets being immaterial.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Changes in accounting policies
Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently apolied the accounting policies to all periods in these
consotidated financial statements.

[FRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring firancial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts
to buy or sell non-financial items. This standara replaces |1AS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition and
Measurement'.

As aresult of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group has alsc adoptec consequential amendments to IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Staternents, which require impairment of trade receivables and other contract assets to be presented in
a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss where material. Impairment losses on other financial assets
are to be presented separately under finance costs, similar to the presentation under IAS 39.

Additionally, the Group has adopted conseguential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures that are
applied to disclosures about 2018/19 but have not been generally applied te comparative information. The adoption
of {FR5 9 did not result in a material adjustments to previously reported results.

A summary of the changes in classification of financial instruments resulting from the new accounting standards are
disclosed in the table below:

Classification under {AS 39 Classification under IFRS 9

Forward foreign currency contracts - Fair value through other Fair vatue through other comprehensive
effective designated hedges comprehensive income income
Forward foreign currency contracts - fair Fair value through Fair value through profit/loss
value through profit/loss profit/loss
Unguoted equities Available for sale Fair value through profit/loss
Trade and other receivables Loans and receivables Amaortised cost
Cash and cash eguivalents Loans and receivables Arnortised cost
Bank loans Loans and recaivables Amortised cost
Loan from immediate parent undertaking Loans and receivables Amortised cost
Trade and other payables Loans and receivables Amortised cost
Other creditors (put aptions) Fair value through fFair value through profit/loss

profit/loss

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 with a date of initial application of 1 April 2018. IFRS 15 establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much ard when revenue is recognised. It replaces IAS 18
Revenue , |IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

The Group has applied iFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method - 1e. by recognising the cumulative effect of
apolying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at T Aprit 2018. Therefore, the comparative
infermation has net been restated and continues to be reported urder JAS 18 and 1AS 11. The details of the
significant changes and guantitative imgpact of the changes are set cut overieaf.
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Statement of Group accounting policies continued

Changes in accounting policies caontinued

The cumulative catch up adjustment required under the cumulative effect method is made up exclusively from
content and format sales other than a £1.3 million acjustment to interests in joint ventures and associates which
relates ta production fee revenue. Overali the effect on revenue is immateria: as shown below due to similar contract
values during 2018/19. Materially affected line items are shown in the tables below. No other line items would have
been materially affected had IFRS 15 not been adopted for the 2018719 financial statements. Comparative prior

year periods have not been adjusted with the exception of cantract liabilities - see note 2d).

The following tables summarises the impacts of adopting {FRS 15 on the Group's consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2016,

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2019

impact on changes in
accounting policies

Balances
without
adoption of
Asreported  Adjustments IFRS 15
£m £m £m
Revenue 1,189.2 (6.4) 1,1856
Total operating costs (1,139.8) 1.7 {(1,141.5)
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 359 - 359
Operating profit 85.3 a7 90.0
Consolidated batance sheet
as at 31 March 2019
Impact on changes in
accounting policies
Balances
without
adoption of
As reported Adjustments IFRS 15
£m £m £m
Interests in joint ventures and associates 2430 13 2417
Trade and other receivables 454.0 01 4541
Other 4435 - 443.5
Total assets 1,1405 1.2 1,132.3
Trade and other payables {376.0) [0.8) {375.2)
Other (285.8) - (285.8)
Total liabilities (661.8) (0.8) (661.0)
Net assets 478.7 0.4 478.3
Retained earnings 4641 0.4 463.7
Other 146 . 1456
Total equity 4787 0.4 4783

There has been no impact of adopting IFRS 715 on the Group's Consolidated statement of comprehensive income or

Consolidated cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Group financial statements

1 Segmental reporting

Ta Analysis of revenue and EBITDA by line of business

The Studios Group Executive Committee, the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker, has determined the reportable
segments based upon the reports it regularly reviews anc uses to make strategic decisions and allocate resources.

The Studios Group Executive Committee assesses the performance of reportable segments based on statutary sales anc
EBITDA. Line iterns between EBITDA and profit before tax are not allocated to segments.

The results of the holding Company and other commercial entities are reported to the Board at the same time as other
segments. Group adjustments refiect etiminations required for trading act'vity between the segments detailed above.

Informaticn regarding the assets and liabilities of reportabie segments is not regarted to the Board.
The reportabie segments are:

* Praduction and Distribution - Production and distribution of scripted and non-scripted pragrammes to broadcasters and
platform owners, including our share of the results of our joint venture and asseciate production companies, format
sales, and other content and brand associated licensing and merchandise.

* Branded Services - BBC nranded channels and digital consumer prapasitions, including our share of the results of our
Joint venture and associate operations in BritBox, BBC America and UKTV, anc those of our digitai branded services
including BBC Player in Asia.

Segment information as presentad is consistent with the Group'’s internal reporting to the Studios Group Executive
Committee.

The Group did not operate as a merged business and did not produce consolidated accounts urtil the current year, and
therefore comparative information is presented for the first time on the same basis to that disclosed for the current year,

During the prior year, the BBC Studioworks business was held within the Group urtit it was transferred to BBC Commercial
Holdings Limited an 11 Octaber 2017, The results of the BBC Studioworks business for the six month period are thus shown
separately in the segmental tables.
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

1 Segmental reporting cortinued
1a Analysis of revenue and EBITDA by line of business continued

Production
and Branded Core Studiowarks
Distribution Services  Eliminations Group  fincl Elims} Group
2019 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Statutory sales 1.047.5 161.0 (19.3) 1,1892 - 1,1892
EBITDA 81.5 769 7.0 1554 - 159.4
Production
and Branded Core Studioworks
Distrubution Services Eliminations Group  (incl Elims) Group
2018 £m £m £m £m £€m £m
Statutary sales 1,0946 158.5 (18.5) 1,235.6 71 1.2427
EBITDA 339 60.8 103 105.0 (0.8) 1042

For the Core Group, inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consclidation and are reflected in the eliminations column

ahove.

1b Geographical location of revenue and non-current assets

The Group's geographical reportable segments reflect management reperting tines and do not solely correspond to the

country or region after which they are named. The Group's revenue by country of destination was as follows:

2019 2018
£m £m
External sales:
UK 5285 5728
America 241.2 2556
Australia 70.2 761
Rest of world 3453 3372
Total 1,189.2 12427
The Group’s nan-current assets, other than financial nstruments and deferred tax assets, located in the UK are £250.3
million (2018: £266.5 million} and located outside of the UK are £207.8 million (2018: £209.5 million).
The allocatian of sales to geographic segments is based upon the business region in which the sales are generated. No
individual country within the rest of world category is more than 3% of totai sales.
Further analysis of the Group's revenues by product or service line is not provided as this information is not routinely
reported to the Board.
BBC Studios Limited
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

2 Revenue

The Group has appliec IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method and therefore the comparative information has net been
restated and continues to be reported under 1AS 18 and IAS 11. The detalls of accountirg ool cies under IAS 18 and IAS 11 are
disclosed seperately if they are ¢ifferent fram those under IFRS 15 and the impact of changes is disclosed in this note.

2a Significant accounting policy
The Group's revenue recognition poticy and main sources of revenue are noted under the 'Statement of Group accounting

policies' on page 30.

Content and format sa.es are recognised on the later of the licence penod start date or when the associated programme has
been delivered. In the compa-ative period, this revenue was recognised when the assocated programme was available for

delivery.

Minimum guarantee revenue on right to use licences are also recognised on the ater of the licence period start date or when
the associated programme has been delivered. In the comparative period, all minimum guarantees were spread over the

licence period.

2b Disaggregation of revenue
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by lines of business and revence streams.

Production Studioworks
and Branded inct
Distribution Services  Eliminations Core Group  elimirations Group
2019 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue streams
Content and format sales 4318 - (18.8) 412.0 - 4120
Production revenues 4918 - 0.5 4523 - 4923
Royalties 316 - - 316 - 316
Advertising revenue 32 20.2 - 234 - 234
Subscription fees - 140.8 - 140.8 - 1408
Consumer products 891 - - 891 - 89.1
Total sales 10475 161.0 {19.3) 1,189.2 - 1,189.2
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

2 Revenue continued
2b Disaggregation of revenue continued

Production Studioworks
and Branded ncl
Distribution Services Eliminations Core Group  eliminations Group
2018* £m £m £m Em £m £€m
Revenue streams
Content and format sales 4324 N (18.8) 41386 - 4136
Production revenues 5055 - 0.3 506.2 77 5133
Royalties 368 - - 368 - 368
Advertising revenue 116 3.6 - 212 - 21.2
Subscription fees - 14993 - 1495 - 14939
Consumer products 1079 - - 107.9 ~ 107.9
Total sales 1.084.6 159.5 (18.5) 12356 71 1,242.7
% The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumutative effect metnod. Under this method, the camparative information 1s not restated. See further
information in this note.
2c Timing cf revenue recegnition
The following table includes revenue from cantracts disaggregated by the timing of recognition:
2019 2018
£m £m
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 1,048.4 10928
Goods and services transferred over time 1408 149.9
Total Core Group revenue 1,189.2 12427
BBC Studios Limited
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

2 Revenue continued

2d Contract balances
Contract Labitites (deferred income) primarily relate to the considerauon received from customers in advance of transferring

a good or service.

The following table provides analysis on significant changes to contract tiabi-ties.

Contract

liabilities

£m

At ® April 2017 {89.9)
Decrease due to revenue recagnised in the period 631
increase due to cash receved in advance and not recognisec as revenue during the ysar {57.3]

At 31 March 2018 (84.1)
Decrease due to revenue recognised in the seriod 675

Increase due to cash received in advance and not recognised as revenue during the year (121.00

At 31 March 2019 (147.6)

Presented within:

Current {126.5)

Non-current (21.1)

(147.6}

The Group has no contract assets as at 31 March 2018,

2e Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to the performance cbligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the reporting date.

2020 2021 2022 Beyand

£m Em £m £m

Content and Format sales 121.8 48.3 310 1823
Production revenue 23895 159.6 08 205
Royalties 2.3 1.5 16 52
Advertising revenue 89 - - -
Subscription fees 708 29.6 13.8 142
86 a3 72 02

Consumer products

No consideratian from contracts with customiers is exctuded from the amounts presernted above

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15 ard does not disclose 'nformation ahout remaining
performance obligations that have original expected durations of one year or less.

2f Contract Costs
No capitalised commission fees or any pther contract costs occurred in the current year or prior year,

Applying the practical expedient in paragraph 94 of IFRS 15, the Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining
contracts as an expense when incurred If the amortisation period of the assets that the Group otherwise would have
recognised is one year or less.
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3 Total operating costs
3a__ Analysis of total operating costs by activity

2019 2018
£m E£m
Cost of sales 8799 39819
Distribution costs 535 523
Administration expenses 206.4 1723
Total 1,1398 1,206.5
3b Operating costs
Operating costs is stated after charging/{(crediting):
2019 2018
Note £m £m
Intangible fixed assets and property, plant and equipment
Depreciation - owned assets 15 5.2 53
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 14 154 100
Amartisation of distribution rights 13 152.2 169.4
impairment of investments in joint ventures and associates 17 10 04
12 215 a5

Impairment of goodwili

Broadcast rights and other inventaries

Included in cost of sales 437 59.3
Write-downs 41 44
Other operating costs

Rentais on operating leases and similar arrangements 3i3s 276
Net foreign exchange {gains)/tosses (1.4} 17.2
Impairment of trade receivables 18 4.9 1.4
Staff costs 6b 193.6 206.9
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

3 Total operating costs continued

3¢ Auditor's remuneration
The National Audit Office served as independent external auditors for the Company for the years ended 37 March

2019 and 31 March 2018. The following table presents the aggregate fees for professional services and other
services rendered by the external auditors to the Group:

2019 2018
£m £m
For the audit of BRC Studios Limited's annual accounts 0.1 -
For the audit of subsidiaries of BBC Studios Limited 0.8 0.8
Total audit fees with the National Audit Office 0.9 08
Audit services with other auditors 0.1 0.4
Total audit fees 1.0 12
Taxation compliance services 0.1 0?2
Total non-audit fees with other auditors 0.1 0.2
Tatal fees paid 1.1 1.4
4  Gains on disposals
2019 2018
£m £m
Gain on disposal of enttties under common controt - 16.4
Gain on available for sale financial assets - 44
Gain on deemed disposal of associates 7.2 -
Gain on disposal of interests in Joint ventures and associates - 04
Gain on disposal of Good Food 28.4 -
35.6 21.2

Total

On 31 August 2018 the Group completed the sale of Good Food to Immediate Media for consideration of £32
million.

5 Other gains and losses

2019 2018
£m £m
Change in fair vatue of derivative financial instruments (0.1} 5.2
Change in fair value of put options over non-controlling interests 15.2 25
Decrease in earn-out payments due in respect of prior acquisitions - 1.7
Total 15.1 94
BBC Studios Limited
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6 Staff numbers and costs

6a Persons employed
The average monthly number of persans {including directors} employed:

2019 2018

Number Number

BBC Studios Distribution Limited 1,445 1,596
8BC Studios Preductions Limited 1,269 1,367
Total 2,714 2,963

Within the averages above, 226 (2018: 222} part-time employees have been included at their fuil-time equivalent of

161 (2018: 160).

The Group also employed an average full-time equivalent of 336 {2018: 243) persons on a casual basis.

6b  Staff costs (including directors)

2019 2018

£m £m

Salaries and wages 164.4 1745
Social security costs 17.9 184
Pension costs 11.3 14.0
Total 193.6 206.9

Employer contributions to the BBC Group Pension scheme in 2018/19 were benchmarked to ensure consistency
with market rates. To compty with Ofcom transfer pricing reguirements, the contributions were charged at this 8%
market rate (2017/18: 16,7%}), compared to the BBC Group rate of 31.4% (2017/18: 16.7%). Following a change In

Ofcom’s transfer pricing requirements to allow recharges at cost, the contributions wilt increase to 31.4% in

2019/20.
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

7 Key management personnel compensation

Key maragement personne. are those people who have authority and responsibitity for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group. The Studios Group Executive Committee (which includes the Directors) for
BBC Studios Limited have been identified as the key management for this Group based on their responsibilities and
influence for running and overseeing the Group's services and operations.

All key management individuals who served during the year receved remuneration by the Group in respect of their
professional services or duties to this Group. The disclosures in this note refer to all these individuals, including those
no longer serving on the Studios Group Executive Committee at the year end.

Key management personnel compensation is as follows:

2019 2018

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 7.4 -
Past-emptoyment benefits 0.4 -
Other lgng-term benefits 0.2 -
Total key manajqement personnel compensation 8.0 -

The defined benefit pension included in the above reflects 31.4% employer contribution, some of which is borne by
another group entity in 2018/19.

The number of key management personnet to whom retirement benefits have accrued throughout the year under
the following schernes is as follows:

2019 2018

Number Number

Defined benefit schemes 9 -
Directors remuneration is as follows:

Date appointed Performance

to Board Salary  Benefits Pension Related Total

2019 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Tirn Davie (highest paid director) 3 April 2018 400 2 32 200 634

Tem Fussell 3 April 2018 314 2 - 157 473

Total directors 714 4 32 357 1,107

Charlie Villar was a director until 3 April 2018 but received no remuneration in either the current ar prior year from

the Group.
The Group has made no contributions ta money purchase schemes for its directors in the year (2018: nil).

Tim Davie is a member of tre BBC defined benefit pension scheme and had accrued entitlements of £18,000 (2C18:
£15,000) under the scheme at the end of the year. The defined benefit pension reflects 31.4% employer
contribution, some of which is barne by another group entity in 2018/19.
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8 Net financing costs

8a Financing income
2019 2018
£m £m
tnwinding of discounted receivables 13 049
Other interest receivable 0.7 0.5
Total financing income 2.0 1.4
8b Financing costs
2019 2018
£m £m
{nferest payabte on loan from parent undertaking 28 3.4
Unwinding of discounted payables 2.4 06
Other interest payable 0.4 0.3
Tetal financing costs 5.6 4.3
BBC Studios Limited
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9 Taxation
9a Taxation recognised in the income statement
2019 2018

Note £m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax {7.4) {15.5)
Group relief (receivable)/payable (3.5 27
Double tax relief (7.5} -
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1.0} (2.4
UK current taxation {12.4) (15.2)
Foreign tax 1B.0 216
Total current tax (credit)/charge (1.4 5.4
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {2.2} (4.5}
Reduction in tax rate {0.1) (7.8)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.2 {1.3)
Total deferred tax ad (2.1) {13.6)
Total credit for the year {3.5) (7.2)

Corporation tax is calculated at 19% {2018: 19%) of the estimated assessable UK profit for the year. Taxation for

other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respecsive jurisdictions.

9b Reconciliation of effective tax expense

The effective rate of tax for the year ended 31 March 2019 was different fram the standard rate of tax in the UK of

15% (2018: 19%) as a result of the following:

2019 2018
£Em £m

Group profit before taxation 132.4 99,7
Profit on ordinary activities befare taxation multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018: 19%) 252 189
Effects of
Disaliowed expenditure and non taxable income 6.0 04
Losses utilised - (2.0)
Production tax credits {31.0) (16.4)
Tax exempt capital gain - (4.0)
Tax differential on wholly owned overseas earnings 22 126
Deemed tax charge on joint ventures and associates profit {5.1) (5.5)
Other differences
Tax rate decrease (0.1) (7.8)
Adjustments in respect of prior years {0.7) (3.4)
Total tax credit for the year {3.5) (7.2)
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9 Taxation continued

8¢ Factors that may affect future tax charges
The Finarce Bill 2016 was enacted on 6 September 2016, This reduced the corporation tax rate to 17% from April

2029. As this reduction to the rate has been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, the deferred tax
assets have beer calculated at 17% in tine with when the company anticipates temporary differences tc unwind.

As part of the 2016 Budget the Chancellor announced the Business Tax Road Map, which inctuded measures to
limit the utilisaticn of brought farward losses and interest deductions. These were included in Finance (No. 2] Act
2017, which was substantially enacted or 31 October 2017, and applied from 1 April 2017.

There are many future changes to worldwide taxation systems as a result of the potential adoption hy the UK and
individual territories o* measures relating to the OECD Base Erosion and Profit Shifting Actions. The Group
continues to actively menitor any developments and evaluate their potential impact. The Group does not expect the
future tax rate to be materially impacted by these changes to the international tax landscape.

9d  Analysis of deferred tax balance

Net

deferred

Accelerated tax

capitat Financial (liability) /

allowances  Provisions instruments Other asset

Note £m £m £m £m £m

AT 1 April 2018 4.4 5.2 0.4 (16.4) (6.4)
(Charge) / credit to income statement 9a (1.5) 15 G4 1.7 2.1

Diisposal of subsidiaries, jcint ventures and
associates - {1.1) - - (1.1)
At 31 March 2019 29 56 08 {(14.7) {5.4)

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019 57




Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued

9 Taxation centinued
9d  Analysis of deferred tax balance continued

2019 2018
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities) presented within: £m £m
fNon-current assets 10.6 59
Non-current liabilities (16.0) {123
Total (5.4) (6.4}

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried forward are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised defer-ed tax assets
arising on capital losses tetalling £139.2 million (2018: £139.2 million) and trade losses tatalling £23.2 million
(2018: £28.2 million}). These assets have not been recognised an the basis that there is insufficient certainty that
future gains or profits will arise against which the Group can utilise these losses. Thereis no time limit for the
utilisation of these losses.

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was £0.5 million {2018: £0.5 millien). No
liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group s in a positon to contrel the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and those differences are not expected ta reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Temparary differences arising in connection with the Group's interests in the undistributed retained earnings of
associates and joint ventures are not considered to be material in either year,

Se Current tax asset
The current tax assets totalting £12.4 million (2018: £26.1 million) includes £20.7 million (2018: £22 .4 million) due in

respect of film tax credits outstanding on high-end drama, comedy, natural history and factual productions.

Sf  Current tax liabilities
The current tax Liabilities totalling £7.8 mitlion {2018: £10.9 miliion) is due in overseas jurisdictions.

10 Equity Dividends

2019 2018
Dividends payable on ordinary equity shares £m Em
Dividends were paid/proposed as follows:
March 2019 of 130,600p per share 65.3 -
March 2018 of 142,700p per share - 714
October 2017 of 75,418p per share - 377
Total dividends 65.3 109.1
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11 Acquisitions

The operations of the former BBC Studios Public Service Broadcasting division were transferred, as a going concern,
on 1 Aprit 2017 to form a new BBC Studios Productions Limited company. Net assets transferred totalled £49.5
miilion, which included £96.5 millien of programme related assets and £50.9 million of trade and other payables.
Existing intellectual property rights did not transfer and remain owned by BBC Public Service Broadcasting, while
employees employed directly by the former BBC Studios division were subject to Transfer of Lindertakings
{Protection of Empioyment) Regutations. The consideration for the transferred assets was ultimately by way of the
issue of shares.

On 27 March 2017 the special purpese vehicle BBC Grafton House Productions Limited and on 1 April 2017 the
special purpose vehicles, BBC Comedy Productions Limited and BBC Natural History and Factual Productions
Limited were transferred from the Group's parent entity, BBC Commercial Hoidings Limited, to BBC Studios
Productions Limited, forming the BBC Studios Productions Group. As these entities remained under common
control throughout, the transfer was accounted for using the predecessor value method and consequently £2.7
million (£0.2 mitlion within 2017/18) of net assets acquired were recognised within ather reserves.

During the year, the Group made payments totalling £13.7 million plus deferred consideration of £2.8 million for
three acquisitions including two associate investments and a subsidiary acquisitian. The business fits with the
ongoing commitmertt of the Group to support the best creative talent in the UK and take quality British
programming to the world.

Subsidiary Acquisition - Lookout Point Limited

BBC Studios Distribution Limited previously held a 49.9% share in Lookout Point Limited (LPL] and on the S July
2018 purchased an additional stake taking the sharehotding to 100%, thus LPL brewame a wholly awned subsidiary of
BRC Studios Distribution. The initial LPL investment was revalued at acquisition date at a fair value of £12.5 million
compared to a carrying amount of £6.5 million. As at 31 March 2019, LPL is fully consolidated, recognising goodwill
of £19.3 million ard removing the amount held as an associate investment of £6.5 million. On acquisition date, £28.2
million of work in progress and £33.2 million of deferred income was recognised relating to productions. Since
acquisitian, the group has recognised revenue of £39.2 million and profit of £1.4 million including high end tax
credits.
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12 Goodwill

2019 2018

£m £m

Cost
AL 1 April 36.2 355
Additions 193 18
Exchange diferences - {1.1)
At 31 March 55.5 36.2
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 05 -
Impairment 215 0.5
At 31 March 22.0 0.5
Net book value 335 357

Goodwill is allocated by cash generating unit {CGU}Y ard is analysed 'n the BBC Studios Distribution Limited results,
The applicable cash generating units within BBC Studios Distribution Limited are as follows:

2019 2018

£m £m

Consumer distribution business 3.5 254
Australian channels business 85 85
Independent production companies 21.1 18
At 31 March 335 35.7

The Group tests goodwilt for impairment in the accounting periad in which a business combination takes place,
thereafter annually, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use caicutations. The key assumptions used for
these calculations are those regarding discount rates and growth rates. Management estimates discount rates using
ore-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to each CGU.

Consumer distribution business
The gocdwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of 2 Entertain Limited on 5 August 2009. The cash flow

orojections used in determining va.ue in use are based on the current business plan approved by management, which
covers a five year period after which cash flows have been extrapolated using an expected iong term growth rate of
-34% {2018: -4%).

A discount rate of 8.8% (2018: 9.3%) has been apptied to the cash flows.

The main assumption on which the forecast cash flows are based is the trends in the global DVD market. The Group
performed ar operational review of the DVD business concluding that sales are declining by an average of
approximately 22% per year, which the Group extrapolated to calculate the expected decline on EBITDA for this
business.

As 3 result of the changes in the global DVD market, management made the decision ta impair the goodwill in the
consumer distribution business by £21.5m in 2018/19 as a result of the annual impairment review.
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12 Goodwill continued

Australian channels business

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of UK.TV on T July 2008. Cash flow projections used in
the recoverable amount calculation are based on financial budgets aporoved by management covering a period of
five years {2018: five years) and a discount rate of 8.6% (2018: 9.9%;}. Cash flews beyond the forecast period have
been extrapolated using an expected growth rate of 1% (2C18: nil%).

The main assumption on which the forecast cash flows are based is licence fee rates. In forming its assumptions
about licence fee rates, the Group has used a combination of long term trends and recently cantracted terms.

Management believes that no reasonable change in the key assumptions on which the value in use of this CGU is
based would result in an impairment.

fndependent production company
The 2018 goadwill balance arcse as a result of the acquisition of Sid Gentle Films Limited on 25 January 2018. In

2019 additional geodwill arose on step-acquisit.on of Lookaut Point Limited art 5 July 2018,

Tne cash flow projections used in cetermining value in use for both CGUs are based on the current business plans
approved by management, which cover afive year period after which cash flows have been extrapolated using an
expected long term growth rate of 1%.

A discount rate of 10.4% has been applied to both of these.

Managernent believes that no reasonable change i the key assumptions on which the value in use of these CGlis are
based would result in an impairment.

13 Distribution Rights

2019 2018
Em £m

Cost
At 1 April 1,0198 04,4
Additions 170.5 1178
Rights where licences have exnired (4.8) -
Exchange differences 18 {2.4)
At 31 March 1,187.0 11,0198
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 909.3 7424
Charge for the year 152.2 1694
Rights where licences have expired {4.8) -
Exchange differences 1.3 (2.5)
At 31 March 1,058.0 3908.3
Net book value 129.0 110.5
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14 Other intangible assets

Carrier Other
Software agreements Intangibles Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2017 52.3 10.1 4.5 66.9
Additions 50 - 10.0 15.0
Disposals (18.7) - - (18.7)
Exchange differences - {1.1} {0.1} {1.2}
At 31 March 2018 386 9.0 144 62.0
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2017 341 55 1.7 413
Charge for the year 60 0.7 33 100
Disposals {18.3) - - {18.3)
Exchange differences - (0.7} (0.1) (0.8)
At 371 March 2018 218 55 49 322
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 16.8 35 .5 298
Cost
At 1 April 2018 38.6 9.0 14.4 62.0
Additions 146 - 7.7 223
Disposals (3.3) - - (3.3}
At 31 March 2019 499 9.0 22.1 81.0
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 Aprit 2018 218 55 498 322
Charge for the year 7.0 06 7.8 154
Disposals (2.5) - - {2.5)
Exchmﬂjiﬁerences - - 0.1 0.1
At 31 March 2019 263 6.1 128 45.2
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 23.6 2.9 9.3 358
Other intangibles predeminantly comprise of intellectual property and customer relationships. No individual
category on its own Is material.
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15 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plant and Fumnitureand  Assets under
buildings machinery fittings  construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2017 17.8 54.0 15.3 47 918
Additions - 26 1.4 46 86
Disposals - (28.7) (3.7} (9.3) (41.7)
Exchange differences 0.6} (0.4} (0.6) - (1.6)
At 31 March 2018 17.2 275 12.4 - 571
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2017 5.8 39.5 10.6 - 559
Charge for the year 09 32 1.2 - 53
Disposals - (26.5) {3.5) - (30.0)
Exchange differences {0.4) (0.1) (0.4) - (0.9)
At 31 March 2018 6.3 16.1 7.9 - 303
Net book value
At 37 March 2018 10.9 1.4 4,5 - 26.8
Cost
At 1 April 2018 17.2 275 12.4 - 571
Additions 01 13 o7 0.3 2.4
Brought into service - 03 - {0.3) -
Exchange differences 0.3 0.1 0.2 - 0.6
At 31 March 2019 17.6 29.2 13.3 - 60.1
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2018 6.3 10.1 79 - 30.3
Charge for the year 05 32 1.1 - 52
Exchange differences 0.4 0.1 0.1 - 0.6
At 31 March 2019 7.6 19.4 9.1 - 36.1
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 10.0 9.8 4.2 - 24.0
16 Programme related assets and other inventaories
2019 2018
£m £m
Rights to broadcast acquired programmes and films 423 375
Work in pregress 99.3 125.0
Finished goods and goods for resale 58 68
Total programme related assets and other inventories 1474 169.3
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17 Group share of joint ventures’ and associates' assets and profit
Investments in joint ventures

Details of the Group's significant interests in joint ventures and associates, including the name, country of
incerporation and proportian of ownership interest, is given in note 32,

The movements in joint ventures and associates during the yea~ were as follows:

Joint  Assoclates Total Joint  Associates Total
ventures ventures
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 34.6 1814 2280 399 2051 2450
Addizions 0.6 3.1 3.7 1.1 6.3 74
Disposals - 6.5) (6.5) - (1.5} {1.3)
Share of results 250 109 3595 235 12.3 358
Adjustment to provision for unrealised profits {06} 0.5 ©.1) 08 (1.4} (0.6)
Dividends receivable {14.9) (12.0) (26.9) {30.1) (8.2} (39.3)
Foreign exchange translation gains/{lcsses) 0.1 118 - 119 {(0.6) (15.8) (20.4)
Impairment - (1.0) {1.0) - {0.4) (0.4)
At 31 March 448 198.2 243.0 34.6 191.4 226.0

Additions relate predominantly to investments in independent production companies,

Changes in interests in joint ventures and associates
The Group invested £6.6m further into BB Rights LLC a joint venture with [TV formed in 2016.

During the year, the Group purchased a 15% share in MeonAge Pictures on 15 April 2018 and a 25% share in
Firebird pictures on 28 February 2019, both independent production ccmpanies. These have both been recognised
as assoclates.

The Group previousty held a 43 9% share in Lockout Point Limited, an associate bolding in an independent
producticn company, and on the 5 July 2018 purchased the remaining sharehotding, resulting in it being a 100%
whotly owned subsidiary.

As aresuit of impairment reviews, the Group partially impaired two associate holdings in independent production
companies.

Costs directly attributable to equity transactions are capitalised.

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019 64



Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued

17 Group share of joint ventures’ and associates’ assets and profit continued
investments in joint ventures continued

Interests in joint ventures
Interests in joint ventures in the current and previous years included the following material operation:

UKTV

BBC Studios Distripution Limited has a major partnership deal with Southbank Media Limited for the productior,
marketing and supply on a wholesale basis of free-to-air and subscription channels in the UK. The partnership
operates through the joint venture company UKTV Media Holdings Limited {UKTVY). Southbank Media Limited
was ultimately awned by Scripps Networks Interactive Inc. until 6 March 2018 when ownership transferred to

Disceovery Inc.
UKTV was the only material joint venture undertaking held by the Group in both the current and the prior year,

The following represents the Group's aggregate share of UKTV during the year:

UKTV UKTV
2018 2018
£m £m
Non-current assets 18.4 89
Current assets 248.0 2413
Current liabilities {124.0) {128.5)
Non-current liabilities (48.0) (51.2)
Net assets of UKTV 94.4 705
Group's share of net assets of UKV 47.0 351
Provision for unrealised profit (4.7 {4.2)
Interest in UKTV 423 309
Revenue 332.0 3280
Expenses {256.7) (252.4]
Depreciation {6.3) (36]
Interest payable 3.7 {36)
Taxation {12.5) (14.7)
Profit after taxation 52.8 53.7
Profit from UKTV attributable to other parties (26.4) {26.9)
Group share of results from UKTV recognised in
consolidated income statement 26.4 26.8

Included within the UKTV balance sheet are cash and cash equivalents of £30 miliion {2018: £28.9 mill on),
financial liabilities of £117.3 million (2018; £111.8 million) and non-current financial liabilities of £48.Tmillion
{2017: £51.4 million). inctuded within UKTV's expense for the year 's an amortisation charge of £129.9 million
(2018 £114.5milbion}.
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17 Group share of joint ventures' and associates' assets and profit continued

Investments in associates
Interests in associates in the current and previous years included the following material operatior:

New Video Channel America, LLC. ("NVCA")

On 23 Qctober 2014, the Group sold a 49.9% stake in NVCA, fermerly a wholly-owned sutsidiary of BBC
Worldwide Americas Inc., and retained an investment of 50.1% in NVCA. Whilst the Group retains significant
influence over NVCA, and has the right ta variable returns, it na longer has cantrol as the Group has limited power
over the operational activities, hotding responsibility for voting anly an activities outside the narmal course of
business. Therafore the Group has deconsolidated NVCA from the date cf the sale and accounts for its retained
interest since that date as an associate.

The following represents the Group's share of NVCA held during the year:

NVCA NVCA

2019 2018
£m £m
Non-current assets 271.6 1451
Current assets 104.6 896
Current liabilities {155.9) (28.4)
Non-current tiabilities (5.5) (8.2)
Net assets of NVCA 2148 198.1
Group share of net assets of NVCA 107.6 892
Prowvision for unrealised profit {4.5) {(4.7)
Goodwill 66.1 61.7
interest in NVCA 169.2 1562
Revenue 145.0 1305
Profit after taxation 246 240
Profit from NVCA attributable to other parties (12.3) (11.8)
Group share of results of NVCA recognised in consolidated income
statement 12.3 12.2

Other associates

The Group has board representation and participates in policy-making decisions affecting Educational Publishers
LLP, 72 Films Limited, Original Talent Limited, Woodlands Books Limited and Moonage Pictures Limited. The
Group has concluded that it exerts significant influence over these businesses despite hotding less than 20% of
the voting power. Accordingly, the Group has classified its interests in these entities as associates.
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18 Trade and other receivables
18a Trade and other receivables due after more than one year

2019 2018
£m £m
Trade receivables 303 44.3
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 2.0 2.2
Total 323 46.5
The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to thejr fair value.
18b Trade and other raceivables due within one year
2019 2018
£m £m
Trade receivables 199.9 211.7
Amounts owed by ultimate parent undertaking 198 151
Amaounts owed by parent undertaking - 2.7
Amounts owed by fellow BBC group subsidiaries 3.8 -
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 454 32.1
Prepayments 21.6 j2.1
Accrued income 120.2 942
Other receivables 18.9 143
Total 421.7 382.2

19 Expected credit losses
Included in the Group's contract assets and trade and other receivables at 31 March 2019 are balances of £26.2

million (2018: £29.6 million) which are past due at the reporting date but not impaired. The aged analysis of these
balances is as follows:

2019 2018
Em £m

Up to 3 months 19.6 231
3 to 6 months 23 39
QOver &€ months 43 2.6
Total 262 296

In determining the recoverability (likelihood of receiving payment) of a trade and other receivable the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date. The historical lass rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking infarmation on
macroeconomic factors affecting the aoility of the customers to settle the receivables. Receivables are provided
for hased on the probability of expected credit losses for each receivable.
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19 Expected credit losses continued
Amounts charged to the impairment provision are writter off when there is no expectation of recovery.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the income statement. The impairment

prov'sion stands at £7.4 million at 31 March 2019 {2018; £3.1 millicn).

The movemnent in the allowance for expected credit losses is set out be.ow:

2019 2018
£m £m
Ba.ance at the beginning of the year 3.1 42
Charge for the year 49 14
Amounts recoverad during the year (0.1} (1.8}
Amounts written off as uncollectable {0.5) {09
Balance at the end of the year 7.4 31
No significant amount has been provided for items that is not yet due for payment.
20 Trade and other payables
20a Trade and other payables due within one year
2019 2018
£m £m
Trade payables 428 386
Salaries and wages creditors 311 340
Rights creditors 1350 156.2
Amounts owed to ultimate parent undertaking 271 314
Amaunts owed to fellow BBC Group subsidiaries 2.4 151
Amounts owed fo joint ventures and associates 11.1 12
Accruals 469 415
Deferred income 38 0.2
Other payables 40.3 335
Total 340.5 351.7
20b Trade and other payables due after more than one year
2019 2018
£m £m
Rights creditors 16.4 383
Other payatles 19.1 266
Total 355 659

Other payables includes the fair value of put option liabilities of £12.4 million (2018: £25.2 million). The Group had

no centingent considerations in efther the current or prior year.
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21 Cash and cash equivalents

2018 2018
£m £m
Cash at bank availahle on demand and cash in hand 49.2 453
Total 452 453
22 Borrowings
22a Borrowings due within one year
2019 2018
£m £m
Bank loans 8.5 0.9
Total 85 09
22b Borrowings due after more than one year
2019 2018
£m £m
Bank loan 1.1 -
Borrawings from parent company BE3 171.0
Total B6.4 1710
See note 29 for further details on borrowing facilities in place.
BBC Studios Limited
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23 Provisions and contingent liabilities

At 1 Charge Utitised Released At 31

April for the during the during March

2018 year year the year 2019

£m £m £m £m £m

Restructuring 2.7 1.1 (.7 - 21
Property provisiors 15 0.1 (0.4 - 12
Other 6.3 5.0 (0.2) (0.3} 14.8
Total 10.5 10.2 (2.3} (C.3) 18.1
Included in current Liabilities a1 15.0
Included in non-current liabilities 1.4 3.1
Total 10.5 18.1

Property-related pravisions include onerous leases in respect of properties held under non-cancellable leases,
when the expected benefts to be derived by the Group from subletting those properties are lower than the
unavoidable costs payable gver tha remaining term of the respective leases, together with provisions far
dilapidations in respect of leasehold properties.

Other provisions primarily comprise of legal claims.

The Group has given guarantees in relation to the BBC Commercial Holdings timited revolving credit facility
agreement. No amounts were drawnh down under this facility in the current or prior year. In addition the Group has
given guarantees in relation to a US private placement in the name of BBC Commercial Roldings Limited which at
year end was £193.2 million (2018: £181.6 million). At 31 March 2013, the total amount of this debt was £193.2
millicn {2018: £181.6 million).

The Group occasionally enters inta contracts with other equity shareholders of its joint ventures and assaciates to
purchase additicnal equity. In some cases, these contracts place an abligation on the Group te acguire further
shares at the option of the counterparty to the contract. The Group has not recorded a liability in respect of most
of these contracts as the amounts payable in the event of exercise are based on a proxy far the market value of
those shares. Amounts payable under such contracts are not expected to be material to the Group as a whole.

There were no contingent liabilities in the current or prior year,
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24 Share capital

2019 2018
£Em £
Issued, allotted, called up and fully paid
At 1 April 0.1 1.3
Share issue - 495
Share capital reduction - (50.7)
At 31 March 0.1 C.1

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income.

In the prior year, BBC Studios Limited resolved to reduce its share capital to £50,000 by means of the solvency
statement procedure (in accordance with sections 644 & 649 Companies Act 2006).

25 Equity shareholder's funds and reserves

Retained earnings

The retained earnings reserve reflects accumulated profits to date and the one-off cumulative catch-up
adjustment of £4.9 million due to the transition to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers . The
cumulative catch-up adjustment is an entry to opening retained earnings to reflect the changes in revenue
recognition due to IFRS 15 under the modified retrospective transition method. Refer to accounting policies
section for further information on the transition. As at 31 March 2019, the cumulative goodwil! charged to
reserves on acquisitions prior to T April 1998 amounted ta £14.2 millicn. This amount 's unchanged from the prior
year, and remained in equity in the subsidary it relates to upon transition to IFRS as permitted by IFRS 1.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve is used to record the effective portion of cumulative net changes in the fair value of cash
flow hedging instruments, related to hedged transacticns that have not yet occurred (net of tax). During the
current year, losses of £4.0 million were removed frocm the hedging reserve and recognised in revenue in the
income statemeant (2018: losses of £17.4 million).

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations, as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Group's net
investment in foreign subsidiaries.

Other reserve

Other reserve ircludes the fair value of put option liabilities arising on acquisition of subsidiaries and the
difference between the cost of investment and net assets of entities acquired which are held under common
control.
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26 Reconciliation of Group profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2019 2018
£m £m
Group profit before tax 132.4 99.7
Depreciation, amortisatien and impairment 43.1 16.2
Amorusation of distribution rights 152.2 169.4
Loss/{gains) on derivatives 2.1 (5.2}
Share of profits in joint ventures anc associates {35.9) (35.8)
Gains on disposal of available for sale investment - (4.4)
Gains on dispesal of joint ventures and associates (7.2} {0.4)
Gain on sale and termination of operations (28.4) (16.4)
Other gains and losses (15.2) (4.2)
Financing income {2.0) {1.4)
Financing costs 56 43
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 219 (102.8)
Decrease in receivables 16.5 96.0
Decrease in payables (19.5) (34.8)
Increase in provisions 7.6 38
Cash generated from gperations 273.2 184.0
27 Commitments and operating leases
27a Commitments
2019 2018
Distribution Other Distribution COrther
rights  Commitments rights Commitments
£m £m £€m £m
Amounts due in less than ane year 121.6 44.7 938 30.2
Amounts due between two and five years 36.4 125 20.0 24.6
Totat 158.0 57.2 7138 54.8
Included in other commitments is £25.8 million (2018; £21.7 millior) of commitments to associates and £7.4
million (2018: £16.0 million) to joint ventures.
27b Operating leases
The total future minimum iease payments under noncancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
2019 2018
£m £m
Within one year 254 225
in two to five years 318 335
After five years 65.9 72.3
Total 1231 1283
The majority of operating leases relate to property. The rent payable under these leases is subject to
renegeotiation at the various intervals specified in the agreements.
BBC Studics Limited
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28 Financial Instruments

This sectron details the financial instruments held by the Group. A financial instrument is a contract that results in
one entity recording a financial asset (a contractual right to receive financial assets, e.qg. cash} in their accounts and
another entity recording a financial liability.

The Group's firancial risk management operations are carried out by a BBC Group Treasury function, within
parameters defined formally within the policies and procedures manual agreed by the Treasury Management Group
which has delegated authority from the BBC Board.

The BBC Group Treasury function uses financial instruments to raise finance and to manage financial risk arising
from the BBC's operations in accordance with its ohjectives, which are:
* toensure the business of the BBC, both public service and commercial, is funded in the most efficient manner
and remains compliant with borrowing ceilings;
* to protect the value of the BBC's assets, liabilities and cash flows from the effects of adverse interest rates and
foreign exchange fluctuations; and
* {0 maximise the return on surplus funds, whilst ensuring sufficient cash is retained tc meet foreseeable
liquidity requirerments.

The Group takes a risk averse approach to the management of interest rate fiuctuations and foreign currency
trading and has implemented a clear economic hedging policy to minimise volatility in the financial results. A
number of the forward foreign currency contracts entered into by the Group were designated as hedging
instruments in effective cash flow hedges. Hedge accounting is only applied where there is appropriate designation
and documentation.

The Group is exposed to the following areas of risk arising from financial instruments:

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Market risk - Transactions and balances denominated in  Cash flow forecasting Forward foreign currency

currency risk foreign currencies contracts

Market risk - Long term borrowings at variable rates Projected borrowing  Interest rate swaps, caps

interest risk requirements and collars where required

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other financial liabilities Rolling cash flow Monitoring cash flow

forecasts forecasts and covenant
compiiance

Credit risk Counterparty default on contractua! Credit ratings and Assessment of financial

obligations aging analysis reliability, collateral and

other credit enhancements
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28 Financial instruments continued

Currency risk

Foreign exchange transaction risk arises from forecast future commercial transactions that are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity's functional currency. Foreign exchange translation risk arises from the retranslation
of overseas subsidiar'es’ income statements and balance sheets into sterling. The Group is a global organisation with
the majority of revenues generated outside the UK. The Group has significant overseas operations and as a result is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currercy expaosures, principally in relation to the US dollar, the
Furo and the Australian dollar. Due to movements in exchange rates over time, the amount the Group expects to
receive or pay when it enters into a transaction may differ from the amount that it actually receives or pays when it
settles the transaction.

The Group has implemented a hedging policy to minimise volatility in its financial results. The Group's policy is to
hedge a preportion of its forecast net foreign currency trading covering a perind of up to twoe years. The foreign
currency forwards are denominated in the same currency as the highly probable forecast net exposures and
therefore the hedge ratio is 1:1. Forward currancy contracts allow the Group to settle transactions at known
exchange rates, and therefore to reduce uncertainty arising from currency risk.

The overall income or expenditure to be recognised in relation te contracts denominated in foreign currencies (and
the related hedges) is therefore fixed; however, where these contracts spar. financial years, the recognitior of the
fair value of tre forward currency contracts resuits in timing gains or tosses in each financial year. These timing gains
or losses are as a result of market conditions and not variances in underlying contract value,

Depending on how exchange rates move between the t.me the Group enters inte the transaction and at the year
end reporting date, derivatives can either be profitable ('in the money’} or loss-making in their own right. However,
the rationale in entering into these derivatives is not to profit from currency markets or interest rate fluctuations,
but to provide stability to the Group's cash flows. Other than where hedge acccunting is applied the movements
relating to these derivatives {i.e. where they are either in profit or loss-nraking) are taken to the Group’s statement of
incame and excenditure for the year.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had entered into a net commitment to sell foreign currencies amounting to
£290.1 million {2018: £124.1million) that mature in the period through tc 2021 in order to fix the sterling cost of
commitments through this period (mainly euros and US dollars).

Based cn the net forward contracts outstanding at 31 March 2019, if the pound had moved adversely by 5% with all
other variables being constant, the profit ar 10ss impact would have been a gain of £0.9 mullion (2018: loss of £3.0
million} and the comprehensive income impact wouid have been a loss of £15.5 million (2018 loss of £2.8 million).

Net gains (before tax and non-cantrolling interests) recognised in the hedaing reserve on forward foreign exchange
contracts in hedge relationships at 31 March 2079 were £1.8 million {2018: £25.9 mitlian net gains). These amounts
are recognised in the income statement in the period when the hedged forecast transaction impacts the income
statement.

The ineffective portion recognised in operating costs arising from such hedges was £0.9 million (2018: nil).
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28 Financial Instruments continued

Interest rate risk

The Group's main exposure to interest rate fluctuations arises on external interest bearing liabilities and loans from
its parent undertakings. The Group borrows at floating rates of interest creating an exposure to cashflow interest
rate risk.

if interest rates had been 1% higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 March 2019 would have decreased by £1.5 million (2018: £1.4 million).

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group is
subject to ceilings imposed on its barrowings by the 3BC, which in turn is subject to Umits set by the Secretary of
State in accordance with the Agreement between the BBC and Department of Culture Media and Sport. At 31
March 2019 the net debt limit imposed was £300 million {2018: £270 mitlion}.

In order to comply with these limits, together with the terms of any individual dekbt instruments, the Group manages
its liquidity through a number of measures, including regutar cash flow reporting, forecasting, hedging against
foreign exchange fluctuations and proactively managing working capital.
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28 Financial instruments continued
Liguidity risk continued

The following table sets out the contractual undiscounted cash flaws (including interest) of financial liabilities:

Total Between
Carrying contractual lLessthan oneand Overfive
value cashflows oneyear five years years
2019 £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables {359.8) (3598) (336.4) {22.9) (0.5
Non-controlling interest put ogtions (12.4) (18.7) - (16.7] -
Rank loans {9.6) (5.7 (8.6) (1.1} -
Loan from immediate parent undertaking {85.3} (87.9) (1.7 {86.2} -
Derivative financial liabitities
Forward foreign currency contracts - fair value through profit/loss (1.4) (1.4) n.1n {0.3) -
Total Between
Carrying contractual Lessthan cneand Overfive
value cash flows oneyear five years years

2018 £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables {392.2) (392.2) (3149 (52.4) (24.9)
Non-cantrolling interest put options (25.2) (37.8) (37.8) - -
Bank loans (0.9) (0.9) 0.9} - -
Loan from immediate parent undertaking 171.00 (177.0) 4.0 (173.0) -
Derivative financial liabilities
Designated forward forelgn currency contracts - fair value through
other comprehensive income {1.7) {1.7) (1.7} ~ -
Forward foreign currency contracts - fair value through profit/loss (0.3) 0.3) (0.3) - -
Embedded derivatives {0.5) {0.6) - (0.8) -
BBC Studios Limited
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28 Financial Instruments continued

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer counterparty defaults on its contractual cbligation.
Credit risk arises from cast and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial instruments are held only with banks of A+ to BBB rating. The
Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in liquid securities with counterparties that have a minimum
credit rating of A-, with a higher minimum rating up to AA- required depending upon duration and amount. Given
these high credit ratings, the Grouo considers it has approgriately mitigated the risk of any counterparty failing to
meet its obligations.

The Group's credit risk management policy in relation to other trade receivables invelves reqularly assessing the
credit quality of customers, taking into account several factors such as their financial position and historical
performance. The carrying amaount of financial assets included in the financial statements represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to these assets.

For 2019 and 2018, there were no customers external to the BBC Group comprising over 10% of the Group's total
revenues. For related party revenues and receivables please refer to note 31.

Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques

When calculating the fair value of the Group's financial instruments (subsequent to the initial recognition), the
technique used is determined with reference to the ciassification .0 the 3-level hierachy set out below. This
disclosure helps to show the level of judgement that the Group has used in calculating fair values, subsequent to the
initial recagnition.

Fair value hierarchy levels T to 3 are based upon the degree to which the fair value is observable.
* Level 1 fair value measurements are thase derived from guoted market prices {unadjusted) in active markets;

* Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices} ar indirectly {i.e. derived from prices);
and

*  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on ohservable market data (unobservable inputs).

No transfers between these categories have occurred during the period.

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019 77



Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued

28 Financial Instruments continued
Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques continued

Carrying value For those carried at fair value
Fair value
Amortised  through Fair value
cost profit/loss through OCl Total Level1 Level2z Level3 Total

2019 £m £m £m Em £m £m £m Em
Cash and cash equivalents 492 - - 492 - - - .
Trade and other receivables 4324 - - 4324 - - N -
Derivative financial assets:

Forward foreign currency

contracts - 03 1.3 1.6 - 1.6 - 16
Total financial assets 481.6 03 1.3 483.2 - 1.6 ~ 16
Trade and other payables (359.8) - - {359.8) - - - -
Non-controlling interest put
options - (12.4) - {12.4) - - (12.4)  [12.4)

Derivative financial liabilities:
Forward foreign currency

contracts - {1.4) - (1.4) - (1.4) - (1.4)
Bank loans and overdrafts {9.6) - - {9.6) - - - -
Borrowings from parent

campany (85.3) - - {85.3) - - - '
Total financial liabilities {454.7) {13.8) - (468.5) - (1.4) (12.4) {13.8)
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Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques cantinued

Carrying value For those carried at fair value
Fair value
Amortised  through Fair value
cost profit/loss  through OCI Total Level 1 Level? Level3 Total

2018 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivatents 4513 - - 45.3 - - - -
Trade and other receivables 416.0 - - 416.0 - - - -
Unquoted equities 06 - - 0.6 - - 0.6 06
Derivative financial assets:

Forward foreign currency

contracts - 1.3 1.2 25 2.5 - - 25
Total financial assets 461.9 1.3 1.2 464.4 2.5 - 0.6 3.1
Trade and other payables (392.2} - - (392.2} - - - -
Non-controlling interest put
options - {252 - (25.2) - - 25.2)  (25.2)
Derivative financial liabilities:
Forward foreign currency
contracts - (0.3) (1.7) (2.0) - 2.0 - (2.0)
Embedded cerivatives - (0.6) - (0.6} - - (0.6) 0.6)
Bank loans and overdrafts (0.9} - - {0.9) - - - -
Borrowings from parent
company {171.0) - - £171.0) - - - -
Total financial liabilities {564.1) (26.1) (1.7)  {591.9) - (2.0 (25.8) (27.8}
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28 Financial Instruments continued

Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques continued
Due to their short-term nature; the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and

trade and other payables, is approximately equal to their fair value.

Level 3 financial instruments
The change in fair value of level 3 financia! instruments is reconciled as follows:

2019 2018
Financial Financial Financial Finanaal
assets liabilities assets liabilites
£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 06 (25.8) 7.9 (9.0)
Settlements and payments - - - 1.7
Unwinding of discount recerded within finance expense - (2.9 - (C.€)
Disposal of available for sale asset - - (7.3) -
Additions - - - {21.8)
IFRS 9 cumulative catch up (0.6) 06 - -
Change in fair value recorded in other gains and losses - 15.2 - 3.9
At 31 March 0.0 (124 0.6 {25.8)

The IFRS 9 cumulative catch up adjustment to apening reserves has a net impact of nil. Under IAS 39 unquoted
equities were measured at cost and are now measured at fair value under IFRS § The change in value of £0.6 million
between the balance at 31 March 2018 under JAS 39 and 1 April 2019 under IFRS 9 has been released as a debit to
the opening reserves. Embedded derivatives reiating to financial asset host contracts are no longer separated under
IFRS & and instead the contract is measured entirely under amortised cost. The change in value of £0.6 million
between the balance at 31 March 2018 under 1AS 39 and 1 April 2019 under {FRS 9 has been released as a credit to
the opening reserves.
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29 Borrowing facilities

Total Drawn down Total Drawn down
available 31 at31 March available 31 at 31 March
March 2019 2018 March 2018 2018 Expiry or
Facility interest rate £m £m £m Em review date
Multicurrency loan Interest at a rate broadly 300.0 85.3 270.0 1710 30
facility with the reflects the cost of funding te Septemper
immediate parent, BBC BBC Commercial Holdings 2020
Comercial Holdings inctuding any applicabte
Limrted margin; currently this is 2%
{2018: 29%)
QOverdraft Bank base rate plus 1% if 2.0 - 2.0 - Reviewed
drawn down in sterling. Bank annually
currency overdraftrate plus a
1% margin if drawn down in
other currencies,
Bank loan 3 month GBP LIBOR + 1.75% 88 1.1 - - 15
November
2021
Bank lcan 3 menth GBP LBOR + 1% 26 23 B6 09 31 August
2019
Bank (oan 3 month GBP LIBOR ~ 1% 6.2 6.2 - - 317 October
2019

30 Parent undertaking and controlling party
The Group's immediate parent is BRC Commaercial Holdings Limited, which is in turn 100% owned by the ultimate
parent undertaking and controlling party, the British Broadcasting Corporation (‘BBC'), which is incorporated in the
United Kingdom by Rayal Charter. The largest group in which the results of the Group are consolidated is that
headed by the BBC. The consolidated accounts of the BBC may be obtained online at www.bbc.co.uk/annualreport.
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31 Related party transactions
The related party transactions of the Groap have been presented in accorcdance with IAS 24 Related Party

Disclosures. Related parties of BBC Studics Limited include its subsidiary, joint venture and associate undertakings,
its parent undertaking and fellow subsidiaries and key management perscnnel of the Group and their close family

members.

Transactions between the Company and ts subsidiaries which are related parties, have beer: eliminated on

consolidation and are not disclosed in this nate. Amounts owed by and to the B3C and fellow subsiciary undertakings
within the BBC Group are reported in notes 18 and 20 respectively. [n addition to the above, the Group also received
less than £100,000 of income from BBC Children in Need {2018: less than £100,000 of income), which is the level of

reunding used in these financial statements.

The following table illustrates transactions with the BBC and fellow subsidiary undertakings:

2019 2018
£m £m
Rayalties and other programme related fees (15.1) {16.9)
Dividends proposed (65.3) (109.1)
Other income 360.4 3538
Other expense {46.9) (40.3)
Total 233.1 187.5
in all transactions, the terms of trade were negotiated on an arm's length basis.
The value of transacticns with significant joint ventures and associates are as follows:
Dividends Dividends
Income  Expenditure received Income  Expenditure received
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Name of related party £m £m £m £m £Em £m
Jaint ventures:
UKTV Media Holdings Limited 52.6 - 145 54.8 3G.0
Other joint ventures 8.0 - 04 34 34 0.1
Associates:
New Video Channel America LLC 296 (2.8} 11.4 23.0 (59) 7.7
Other associates 2.6 {5.8} 0.6 24 (*7.1) 15
Total 92.8 (12.6} 269 B3.6 (9.6} 393
BBC Studios Limited
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31 Related party transactions continued
The following amounts were outstanding at the balance sheet date:

Net Net
Receivables Payables balance Receivables Payables balance
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Name of related party £m £m £m £m Em £m
Joint ventures:
UKTV Media Hotdings Limited 35.1 8.7 254 195 - 195
Other joint ventures 3.0 (0.1) 29 34 - 3.4
Associates;
New Video Channel America LLC 2.1 {1.3) 08 25 (1.2} 1.3
Other associates 7.2 ~ 7.2 8.9 - 8.9
Total 474 (11.1) 363 343 (1.2 331

At 31 March 2019, the Group also had an outstanding balance of £1.0 million (2018: £1.0 million) payable to a joint
venture of the Group's ultimate parent inrespect of group relief. This balance is included within other payables.

32 Interestsin joint ventures, associates and subsidiaries

32a Significant joint ventures and their activities
The Group has a 50% equity interest in the following significant joint ventures:

Place of incorporation and
Name of entity principle place of business

Activity

UKTV Media Holdings Limited England and Wales

TV channel operator

32b Significant associates and their activities
The Group holds interests in the following significant associates:

Holding of issued

Place of incorporation and ordinary shares
Name of entity principle place of bysiness % Activity
New Video Channel America LLC* United States 50.1 TV channel operator

*  Whilst BBC Studios Oistribution Limited retains a significant influence over New Video Channel America LLC and has the rights to varable

returns, it is not deemed to have cortrol and is therefore recognised as an assaciate undertaking.

BBC Studios Limited
31 March 2019

83



Annual Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Group financial statements continued

32 Interests in joint ventures, associates and subsidiaries continued

32¢ Subsidiary undertakings

BBC Studios Limited owns 100% of the issued share capital of the following companies, which are incerporated in
Great Britain and registered in England and Wales. Where indicated below (*} the subsidiary is exempt from the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of accounts under section 4794,

Holding
of
Directly owned subsidiaries Registered Address ordinary
BBC Studios Distribution Limited 1 Television Centre, 101 Wood Lane, 100
BBC Studios Productiors Limited London W12 7FA 100
Hoiding
of
Indirectly owned subsidiaries Registered Address ordinary
BBC Graftan House Froductions Limited 100
BBC Comedy Productions Limited 100
BBC Natural Histary and Factuat Productions Limited 100
BBC Natural Ristory Giant Screen Limited 100
Mortimer Productions Limited 100
2 Entertain Limited 100
2 Ertertain Management Limited (company number 05087C03)* 100
2 Ertertain Video Limited 100
BBC Video Limited {company number 04840888)* 100
MCI Music Publishing Limited {company number 02934545)* 100
Demon Music Group Limited {company number 01622224)* 100
Crimson Productions Limited {company number 02270151)* 100
F-Beat Records Limited 100
Demon Recards Limited 100
BBC Earth MD (\WWD) Limited 100
BBC Farth Producticns (Life) Limited (company number 05705186)* 100
BBC Earth Productions Limited (company number 077872371)* 100
BBC Earth Productions (Giant Films) Limited (company number 08413155} 1 Tetevision Centre, 101 Wood Lane, 100
Earth Film Productions Limited (company number 09142155)* London, United Kingdom, W12 7FA 100
BBC Magazines Holdings Limited (company number 05699560)* 100
BRC Studios Carporate Services Limited 100
BBC Studios Investments Limited {company number 02701369)* 100
BBC Studios Drama Productions Limited {company number 08305652)* 100
Tonto Films and Television Limited {company number 05221185)* 100
BBC Studios Channel Investments Limited (company number 03309240)* 100
UK Programme Distribution Limited 53
BEEB Rights Limited a8
Baby Cow Productions Limited 70
Baby Cow Manchester Limited 100
Baby Cow Productions {(Hunderby) Limited 1c0
Baby Cow Productions {Partridge} Limited 100
Baby Cow Productions {Red Dwarf} Limited 100
Baby Cow Films Limited 100
Alan Partridge Limited 100
BBC Earth Productions {Africa) Limited (company number 07451708)* 100
Baby Cow Animation {(Warren) Limited 100
BBC Studios Limited
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32 Interests in joint ventures, associates and subsidiaries continued

32c Subsidiary undertakings contirued

Holdings of
ordinary
Indirectly owned subsidiaries {continued} Registered Address shares %
Baby Cow Animation (Wussywat) Limited 100
Baby Cow Animation Limited 1 Televisian Centre, 137 Wood Lane, Londcn, United 100
Baby Cow Films (Zoe) Limited Kingdom, W12 7FA 100
The _ast Holiday Limited 100
Sid Gentle Films Limited 51
Sid Gentle Films (Corfu) Limited 1C0
Sig Gentle Films {Gaiman) Limited 100
Sig Gentle Films (KEZ2) Limited 100
Sig Gentle Films {Killing Eve) Limited Charles House, 5-11 Regent Street, London, SW1Y 4LR 100
Sid Gentle Films (OLIVE) Limited 100
Sid Gentle Films {$5-GB) Limited 100
Sid Gentle Films (TD4) Limited 100
Sid Gentle Films {The Durrells) Limited 100
Lookout Point Limited 100
A suitable Company Limited 100
AMP 1 Limited 100
Evergreen Televisicn Limited Hammer House, 113 - 117 Wardour Street, London, 100
LOOKOUT PQOINT (LES MISERABLES) Limited ) . 100
o United Kingdom, W1F OUN
LOOKOUT PQINT (SHIBDEN] Limited 100
Lookout Point Acquisition Limited 100
Off Stone Productions Limited 100
Lookout Point {The Collecticn) Limited 100
BBC Studics Canada Limited 409 King Street West, 5th Floor, Toronto, ON, M5V 1K1, 100
Canada
BBC Studios PTE Limited 3 Anson Road, #17-03 Springleaf Tower, Singapore 100
079909
BBC Stucios Japan Limited Tokyo Club Bldg., 10F, 3-2-€ Kasumigaseki, Chiyoda-ku, 100
Tokyo 100-0013, Japan
BBC Studios Productions Nordics ApS Maosedalve] 14, 2500 Valby, Denmark 100
BBC.com U5, inc ¢/o Carporation Trust Centre, 1209 Orange Street, 100
Witmington 19801, United States
Nine Productionsi, Inc £50-699 Howe Street Vancouver, Bntish Columbia, V6 100
0B4, Canada
BRBC Studios France 18-20 Quai du Peoint du Jour, Bat. A, 32100 Boulogne- 100
Billancourt, France
BAC Studios Channel Investments (Ontaro) Ltd Torgnto Daminioh Bank Tawer, Tororto Dominion Center, 100
Toronto, ON M5K 1E6, Canada
2004370 Inc 66 Wellington Street West 470, Toronte Dominion Bank 100
Tower, Toronto M5k 1EG, Canada
BBC Studios Americas, Inc 1120 Avenue of the Americas, 5th Floor, New York, NY 100
10036-6700, United States
BBC Studios Limited
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32 Interests in joint ventures, associates and subsidiaries continued

32c Subsidiary undertakings continued

Holdings of
ordinary
Indirectly owned subsidiaries {continued) Registered Address shares %
Adjacent Productions, LLC 100
Bad Wolf Productions, LLC 100
BEC Stddlcs Reality Productians, LLC 10351 Santa Meonica Boulevard, Los Angeles, CA 90025, 100
Global Hybrid Productions LLC . 100
- ‘ Unijted States
Lime Grove Productions L1.C 100
Sun Never Sets Productions oLC 10C
Studios Competition Production, LLC 100
BBC Studios Americas Investments, Inc The Corporat on Trust Company, Corporation Trust 100
Centre, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington 198C1, United
States
BSC Studios Australia Holdings Pty Ltd Leval 1, 35-51 Mitchell Street, McManans Point NSW 100
BBC Studips Avustralia Pty L td . 100
. 2060, Australia
BBC Studios Productions Australia Pty Ltd 100
BBL Studios Germany Gmbh Kaiser-Wilhelm-Ring 17-21, 50672 Ksln, Germany 100
Erste Weltweit Medien GmbH 1ec
BBC Worldwide Holdings BV Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1037 JB Amsterdam, 100
Netherlands
BBC Studios India Private Limited Construction House A Wing, 401- 4th Floor, Off Linking 100
Road, 24th Road, Khar {W), Mumbai 400 052 India
BBC Studios Africa (Pty) Lid Office 0G3H3 Ground Floor, 10 Melrose Boulevard, 100
Melrose Arch, Melrose North 2196, SA
BBC Studigs Intermediadara de Programadara Rua Ferreira de Araujo, 741, Andar 1, Pinheircs, 530 Paula 100
cstrangeira Ltda SP 05.428-002 Brazil
BBC Studios Polska Sp. z c.o. Pt Bankowy 1, 00-139 Warszawa, Poland 100
BRC Studios Mexico, S.A. de CV. Avenida Paseo de la Reforma No 115, Piso 4 Lomas de 100
BBC Worldwide Chanrels Mexico S.A de CV Chapultepec, Distrito Federal 11000 Mexico 100
Worldwide Knowledge (Beijing) Business Consulting Unit 7, Floar 9, West Tower, Genesis Building, 8 Xinyuan 100
Company Ltd South Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing 100027
BBC Studios Productions Africa (Pty) Ltd 24 18th Street, Menlo Park 0081, Maxars House, 5 ST 100
Davids Place, Parktown 2193, SA
Rapid Blue Pty Limited 263 Qak Avenue, Ferndale, Randburg, 2134, South Africa 100
EBC Studios Limited
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33 Post balance sheet events

On 11 June 2019, the UKTV group, a joint venture previously owned by BBC Studios Distribution Limited and
Southbank Media Limited (see note 17), was demerged and had its ownership restructured. The three leisure-themed
channels were separated from the group, and BBC Studios obtained 100% ownership and control of UKV Holdings
Limited and its remaining seven entertainment channels, as well as UKTV Play and the UKTV brand. The principat
reason for this acquisitior was that these channels are closely aligned to the Group's own content strategy and
supply. The total cash payment due from BBC Studios of £173 million is payable over two years. This includes a cash
consideration of £106 million in relatian to the channels acguisition, and the assumption of £67 million of debt,
previcusly financed by the joint venture counterparty. This acquisition was financed through existing borrowing
facilities. As autidned in note 17, for the year endad 31 March 2019, UKTV had total revenues of £332 million and
profit of £53 million, and had gross assets of £266 million and net assets of £94 million. Owing to the timing of the
transaction occurring close to the date of signing of the 20153 financial statements, full acquisition accounting has
not yet been completed, including calculation of goodwill on acquisition and potential recognition of cther intangible
assets. Full acquisition accounting information is expected to be provided in the financial statements fer the year
ending 31 March 2020,
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Company financial statements

Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2019

Company Comparny

2019 2018
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Investrment in subsidiaries A 166.8 166.8
166.8 166.8
Total assets less current liabilities, being net assets 166.8 166.8
Represented by
Share capital B 01 0.1
Retained earmings B 166.7 166.7
Total equity shareholder’s funds 166.8 166.8
The financial statements were approved by the directors on 18 June 2019 and signed on their behalf by:
Tom Fussell
Director
BBC Studios Limited
Registered number 04463546
BBC Studios Limited
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Company financial statements continued

Statement of Company accounting policies

This section explains the Company’s main accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout the
year and in the preceding year except where stated.

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost accounting convention, and in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom.

Basis of preparation

The Company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, its financial
position and, financial risk management abjectives are described in the Strategic report on page 4. The Company has
sufficient financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and although the Company is not
immune from the effects of the current econemic environment, the Directors believe that the Company is well-
placed to manage those risks effectively. As a result the going concern basis has been adopted in the preparation of
these Financial Statements.

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 {Financial Reporting Standard 100] issued by
the Financial Reporting Council. These financial statements were prepared in accardance with FRS 101 (Financial
Reporting Standard 101} 'Reduced Disclosure Framewark' as issued by the Financial Reporting Council, for all
periods presented.

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the following disclasure exemptions under FRS101:
. IFRS 2 Share based payments

- IFRS 3 Business combinations

. IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

. IFRS 7 Financial instruments

. [FRS 13 Fair value measurement

. IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements

¢ IAS 7 Statement of cashflows

' IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes i accounting estimates and errors
. |AS 24 Related party disclosures

* IAS 36 Impairment of assets

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate profit and loss account reflecting the results of
BBC Studios Limitad has not been presented. The Company's profit after taxation for the financial year was £65.3
million (2018: £71.4 miltian). The Company cid not have any other cormprehensive income and consequently no
statement of other comprehensive income has bean presented aither.

BBC Studios Limited
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Company financial statements continued

Statement of accounting policies continued

Investment in subsidiaries
In the Campany’s financial statements, investments in subsidiary undertakings are statec at cost less amounts
written off.

Impairment losses are allocated firstly against goodwitl, secondly against ather intargibles and thirdly to the
tangible assets of the unit, on a pro-rata or more appropriate basis.

BBC Studioworks Limited was transferred at net book value to the Company's parent, BBC Cormmercial Hold\ngs
Limited, during the prior year.

Taxation

The taxation charge represents the sum of current tax payable and deferred tax. The current tax payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the profit and loss account because it
excludes items that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductibte. The
Company’s Liability for current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet dates.

Deferred tax is pravided using the balance skeet liability method on any temparary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpeses and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Certain temporary differences do not lead to the recognition of deferred tax, for example, deferred tax is not
recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recegnition of goodwill. Tne amaunt of deferred
tax provided is based on the tax rates expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable within three months. Liguid resources are current asset
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash at, or close to, their carrying vaiues. They
comprise money market deposits and liquidity funds with a notice per'od in excess of one werking day.

Dividend income
Dividends are recognised in the year in which they are declared, once any eligibility events have occurred.

Financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair valie and are subsequently remeasured to fair value at

the balance sheet date with movements recerded in the profit and loss account.

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that any financial asset is
'mpaired. Financial assets and tiabilities ara recognised on the baiance sheet when the Company becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised from the balance sheet when the
Company's contractual rights to the cash flows expire or there has been a substantial transfer of the risks and
rewards of the financial asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the Company’s balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
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Company financial statements continued

Statement of accounting policies continued

Dividends on shares presented within shareholder's funds

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a liability at that date to the extent that they are
appropriately authorised and are no longer at the discretion of the Company. Unpaid dividends that do not meet
these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgemants, estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported for assets and liabitities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for
revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of est'mation means that actual outcomes could differ
from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the periad in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following judgements (apart from those invalving estimates) have had the most significant effect on amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Determining whether the Company's investments 'n subsidiaries have been impaired requirec estimations of the
investments' values in use. The value in use calculations require the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the investments and suitable discount rates in order to calculate present value. The carrying amaunt of
investments in subsidiaries at the balance sheet date was £166.8 million (2018: £166.8 million) with no impairment
luss recogniscd in 2019 or 2018.
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Company financial statements continued

Notes to the Company financial statements

A Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Company Cormpany

2019 2018
£m £m
Cost
At 1 April 166.8 172.8
Additions - 495
Disposals - {55.5)
At 31 March 166.8 166.8
Provision for impairment
At 1 April - (17.8)
Disposals - 17.8
Af 31 March - -
166.8 166.8

Net book value

During the prior year, shares were acquired in BBC Studios Productions Limited, whilst BBC Studioworks Limited was
transferred from BBC Studios Limited to BBC Commercial Holdings Limited at net book value.

BBC Studios Limited owns 100% of the issued share capital of the following companies which are incorporated in

Great Britain and registered in England and Wales:

Name of entity

Registered address

Nature of business

BBC Studics Distribution Limited

1 Television Centre,
101 Wood Lane, London,

United Kingdom, W12 7FA

Acquisition, development,

exploitation and licence and sale of
media and publishing intellectual

property.

BRC Studics Productions Limited

1 Television Centre,
101 Wood Lane, London,

Ynited Kingdom, W12 JFA

Development and producticn of

programme content

B Reconcitiation of movements in equity shareholder's funds and reserves
The movement in reserves during the year was as follows:

Retained

Share capital  earnings Total
Company £m £m £m
At 1 April 2018 0.1 166.7 166.B
Profit for the financial year - 653 65.3
Dividends declared in year - (65.31 {(65.3}
At 31 March 2019 Q.1 166.7 166.8
C Auditor's remuneration
The audit fee of £85,000 was borne by another Group company (2018: £2,000 incurred by the Company).
BBC Studios Limited
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